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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (“Moiselle” or the “Company”), |
present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (which
are collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2018 (the “Year”).

MARKET OVERVIEW

China’s firmer economic footing and stronger currency led to a
rebound in tourist arrivals from the mainland at Hong Kong in
2017. The number of visits by the mainland Chinese tourists to
the city rose by 3.9% to about 44.45 million in 2017, in contrast
to a 6.7% decrease in 2016, according to the Hong Kong
Tourism Board. However, this seemed to be of little help in
boosting the city’s retail sales of wearing apparel. The value of
retail sales of wearing apparel at the retail outlets in Hong Kong
merely edged up by 0.6% to about HK$49.88 billion in 2017,
according to the Census and Statistics Department of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region. For one thing, the increase
in the number of visits by the mainland Chinese tourists to Hong
Kong was also marked by a growing trend towards a higher
proportion of such tourists with lower spending power. Another
key factor is that the city’s local population has changed its
consumption patterns — the younger generation increasingly
preferred to shop online. As a result, the conventional
brick-and-mortar retail shops had to grapple with the growing
competition from e-commerce. Another major problem that the
city’s retailers were faced with was the persistently high rents,

which weighed on their profits.

In mainland China, retail of apparel, shoes, headwear and
knitted products rose by 7.8% to about RMB1.46 trillion in
2017, compared with the 7.0% growth in 2016 (source: National
Bureau of Statistics of the People’s Republic of China). This can
be attributed to the stronger consumer confidence on the back of
the resumed acceleration in the country’s economic growth in
2017.
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RESULTS

The Group mainly engages in retailing women'’s fashion apparel
and menswear to high-end and upper-middle markets. During
the Year, the Group recorded a profit of HK$2,007,000
attributable to the shareholders of the Company for the Year, in
contrast with a loss of approximately HK$52.0 million for the
year ended 31 March 2017 (the “Previous Financial Year”). The
turnaround was attributable to an approximately 192.3%
increase in valuation gains on the Group’s investment properties
for the Year. Meanwhile, loss from its operations narrowed by
approximately 60.8% for the Year as a result of a decrease in
selling and distribution costs through closure of underperforming
stores, store relocation and stringent cost management. Revenue
increased by 3.6% to approximately HK$291 million as the
Group recorded slight increases in revenues at its operations in
Hong Kong and mainland China which accounted for 53.6%
and 16.7% respectively of the revenue. The Group also recorded
an 8.5% increase in revenues at its operations in Macau. Such
increases at the Group’s operations in the country and two cities
reversed the downtrend in the past three financial years ended
31 March of 2015, 2016 and 2017. This was attributable to the
resumed acceleration in China’s economic growth and, in the
case of the operations in Hong Kong and Macau, the country’s
stronger currency that encouraged the Chinese customers to
spend outside the mainland China. High rents for shop spaces
continued to be a persistent problem that weighed on the
profitability of the Group’s operations in Hong Kong and
mainland China. The operations in Macau, Taiwan and
Singapore together contributed to 29.7% of the Group’s revenue.
Gross profit margin was 76.3% for the Year, compared with the

78.3% in the Previous Financial Year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The fashion apparel market was impacted by the rising
popularity with e-commerce, which in turn, was partly caused
by the emergence of a younger generation of consumers. These
two trends meant changes in buying pattern and consumer
preferences. Conventional brick-and-mortar retail stores, while
remaining relevant to the market, had to cope with the rising
competition from online shopping platforms. They needed to
shift their mode of operation from merely selling products to
injecting such elements as lifestyle, art and environmental
awareness into their interior decoration and the theme activities
and marketing campaigns conducted there. As an initiative in
enhancing the shopping experience at its retail stores, the Group
opened THE EARTH STORE at the Elements, a large shopping
mall in West Kowloon, Hong Kong in March of 2018. The move
also served to celebrate the Group’s 21st anniversary and to
enhance the image of its major house brand MOISELLE. The
retail shop’s interior decoration incorporates such elements as

art, lifestyle, fashion and environmental awareness.

To capitalize on the growing trend towards e-commerce, the
Group expanded its online retail and marketing operations. In
November 2017, it opened its online store under the brands of
MOISELLE and Rosamund MOISELLE at the e-commerce website
VIP.com, which specializes in online discount sales and is
operated by Vipshop (“MEf®&” in Chinese). Back in November
2016, the Group opened its online store under the MOISELLE
brand at Tmall, one of China’s popular online shopping
websites. The efforts yielded good results as the Group’s average
monthly online sales grew by over 170% during the Year. It also
continued to leverage the social media to promote its brands

and products.
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To reinforce its house brands, MOISELLE, m.d.m.s., GERMAIN,
and Rosamund MOISELLE, the Group developed women’s
apparel with elegant cut and fine craftsmanship representative of
its positioning and distinctive style and debuted them in fashion
shows held by itself or other organizations. For instance,
following a fashion show it held in April 2017, the Group
organized a large-scale fashion show in September in Duddell
Street, Central, Hong Kong, where celebrities and famous
models wore and paraded its new products. It also organized
another fashion show at an open area outside the Hong Kong
Cultural Centre in Tsim Sha Tsui in April 2018 to feature its
autumn and winter collections for 2018 under the theme the
Shape of Wind.

The Group also strengthened its business presence in mainland
China by participating in the Shanghai Fashion Week which was
organized by the Shanghai Fashion Designers Association (“ I i
Me#es%5t &) and the Shanghai International Fashion Center
(7 | it B PR IR 44 AR i b L) and hosted by the Shanghai Municipal
Government in Shanghai in October 2017 and March 2018. In
the event, the new product series of MOISELLE and Rosamund
MOISELLE for the spring/summer of 2018 and autumn/winter
2018 were shown. Under the Rosamund MOISELLE brand, the
Group debuted such new products as sportswear that

incorporated fashion elements.

Meanwhile, it continued to pursue its diverse-product,
multi-brand strategy by strengthening the operation of its
m.d.m.s stores and M Concept stores where the Group sold its
diffusion lines under one roof. An M Concept store at a shopping
mall called PopCorn in Tseung Kwan O has been opened in May
2018. It also stepped up its efforts to market the accessories and
leather goods under LANCASTER by opening a shop in Festival
Walk in Kowloon Tong and a pop-up counter in Sogo, a
shopping centre in Causeway Bay. Moreover, it introduced
products of a wider price range and new product series to the
market so as to broaden its customer base. For instance, the
Group shifted its focus to the market of young customers in

Hong Kong by gearing some of its products towards their tastes.
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To adapt itself to the difficult operating market environment for
the previous three financial years, the Group had been
implementing various measures, including the rationalization of
its retail network through the closure of underperforming stores
or relocation; stringent cost management; cost-effective sales
and marketing initiatives such as the provision of a VIP club
membership service (organizing the members’ visits to its
product showrooms for purchasing goods) in Hong Kong and the
adoption of an online-to-offline business model through
alliances with mainland Chinese online shopping website
operators such as Tmall and Vipshop (“MEfi&” in Chinese) and
by leveraging social media through cooperation with key
opinion leaders. In Hong Kong, where the high rents have been
affecting retailers’ competitiveness and profitability, the Group
had succeeded in negotiating for lower rents for some shop
spaces in the streets. In some of its shops at malls where
landlords were supportive to the Group, the Group had obtained
permission to offer several diffusion lines under one roof. All

these measures were aimed at raising efficiency.
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OUTLOOK

To adapt to the fashion apparel market, the Group will continue
to strengthen the operation of its physical stores by enhancing
the shopping experience there and, at the same time, expand its
online sales and marketing operations through cooperation with
mainland Chinese online shopping website operators and by

leveraging social media.

It will also press on with its diverse-product, multi-brand
strategy, and continue with its cost management measures and

cost-effective marketing and sales initiatives.

All these measures are aimed at coping with the difficulties in
the market and at enhancing the Group’s potential for long-term

growth.

The Group will monitor closely the economic conditions and
fashion trends and make appropriate adjustment to the above

plans to keep abreast of changes in the market.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our
shareholders and our fellow business partners for their support,
and our management and staff for their hard work and

dedication to the Group during the Year.

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Mainly targeting the markets for luxurious apparel, the Group
operates such house brands as MOISELLE, m.d.m.s., GERMAIN
and Rosamund MOISELLE, while engaging in distributorship for
international brand LANCASTER. Each of the brands has its own
distinctive consumer base, and is being developed separately by
the Group’s dedicated and talented designer teams. The Group
retails its products under the various brands at stores in prime
locations. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had 59 stores and
counters in Hong Kong, first- and second-tier cities of mainland
China, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore, down from 75 as at 31
March 2017 because it rationalized its retail network in the

challenging business environment.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS BY LOCATION

Operations in Hong Kong

During the year, a rebound in mainland tourist arrivals was a
shot in the arm for Hong Kong’s previously weak retail sector.
Nevertheless, growth in retail sales of wearing apparel in the city
was minimal. The Group’s business was affected by the low
growth in local spending, which was attributable to the intense
competition from electronic commerce. The difficult situation
was compounded by the exorbitant rents for shop spaces. To
cope with the difficult operating environment, the Group
enhanced the shopping experience at its retail stores by
incorporating such elements as lifestyle, art and environmental
awareness into interior decoration, rationalized its network of
retail outlets, negotiated for lower rents for some shop spaces in
the streets, obtained permission to offer several diffusion lines
under one roof at some shop spaces in shopping malls, and
organized shopping visits by customers of its VIP club
membership to its showrooms in Hong Kong as well as private
promotional events. It also conducted marketing campaigns such
as fashion shows to debut its latest products. The Group pressed
ahead with its diverse-product, multi-brand strategy by
reinforcing its own brands MOISELLE and Rosamund MOISELLE.
On the other hand, it stepped up the development of the brand
LANCASTER by opening more shops under that brand in the
city.
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Sales at the Group’s business in Hong Kong grew by 3.5% to
approximately HK$155,616,000, which accounted for about

53.6% of its total revenues.

The sales revenue was contributed by the Group’s 9 MOISELLE,
5 m.d.m.s. and 1 LANCASTER retail stores and 3 outlets for the
year (As at 31 March 2017: 9 MOISELLE, 6 m.d.m.s., 3
COCCINELLE, 2 GERMAIN and 1 LANCASTER retail stores as

well as 2 outlets).

Operations in mainland China

During the year, the Group expanded its online sales and
marketing operations and, at the same time, rationalized its
network of retail outlets in mainland China. The moves were
geared up towards the buying patterns in the country. It had
adopted an online-to-offline business model through alliances
with mainland Chinese online shopping website operators such
as Tmall and Vipshop (“MEFE” in Chinese) and by leveraging
social media through cooperation with key opinion leaders. It
also diversified its apparel products by adding new elements and
reinforcing its brand concepts. Its brand Rosamund MOISELLE
featured an iconic celebrity Ms. Rosamund Kwan as both its
spokesperson and a provider of the design concept of its
products. The Group reinforced its business presence in the
country by participating in the Shanghai Fashion Week in
October 2017 and March 2018. In the event, the new product
series of MOISELLE and Rosamund MOISELLE for the spring/
summer of 2018 and autumn/winter 2018 were shown. Under
the Rosamund MOISELLE brand, the Group debuted such new
products as sportswear that incorporated fashion elements. The
moves helped to reach potential customers and enhance the

brand awareness.

11
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Sales at the Group’s operations in the country increased by
11.4% to approximately HK$48,562,000 and accounted for

16.7% of the Group's turnover for the year.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group operated 14 MOISELLE retail
stores (As at 31 March 2017: 22 MOISELLE and 1 GERMAIN

retail stores) in the country.

Operations in Macau

In 2017, visitor arrivals from mainland China in Macau rose by
8.5% to about 22.20 million (source: Statistics and Census
Service (DSEC) of the Macau Government) on the back of the
country’s firmer economic footing and stronger currency. This
helped to boost the sales at the Group’s retail outlets in the city.
During the year, the Group operated five shops at the Venetian
Macao Resort Hotel and one shop at the Parisian Macao Hotel,
including 2 concept stores, M CONCEPT, 2 MOISELLE, 1
m.d.m.s. and 1 LANCASTER retail stores in the city (As at 31
March 2017: 2 concept stores, M CONCEPT, 2 MOISELLE, 1
m.d.m.s. and 1 COCCINELLE retail stores). The combined
revenue generated by the six retail stores increased by 8.5% to
approximately HK$48,651,000, or about 16.7% of the Group's

revenue.

Operations in Taiwan

The Group operated 11 MOISELLE, 2 m.d.m.s. and 2
LANCASTER retail stores as well as 3 outlets as at 31 March
2018 in Taiwan (As at 31 March 2017: 10 MOISELLE, 2 m.d.m.s.
and 1 LANCASTER retail stores as well as 4 outlets). The Group's
operations in Taiwan generated revenues of approximately
HK$27,219,000, down by 13.9% and accounting for
approximately 9.4% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.
The Group closed one outlet during the year to rationalize its

retail network.
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Operations in Singapore

The Group’s business in Singapore recorded a 5.9% increase in
revenue to approximately HK$10,528,000 during the year. As at
31 March 2018, the Group ran one MOISELLE store and one
m.d.m.s. store as well as one concept store, M CONCEPT. It
closed one MOISELLE store, one GERMAIN store and one outlet

during the year to rationalize its retail network.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 3.6% to
approximately HK$290,576,000 (2017: HK$280,397,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2018 as compared with 2017. Due to
the improvement in performance of mainland China market, the
revenue of the Group’s operations outside Hong Kong increased
by approximately 3.8% to approximately HK$134,960,000
(2017: HK$130,018,000) during the year ended 31 March 2018
as a result. The revenue earned outside Hong Kong as a
percentage of the Group’s revenue was approximately 46.4%
which was close to that for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The revenue earned from Hong Kong increased by
approximately 3.5% to approximately HK$155,616,000 (2017:
HK$150,379,000) which was mainly due to the favourable
effects brought by the various brand building campaigns carried

out during the financial year under review.
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During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit margin
was approximately 76.3%, as compared to 78.3% of the
previous year. The gross profit margin remained in the normal
range of gross margins of the Group during previous years.
Operating expenses for the year ended 31 March 2018 totaled
approximately HK$249,167,000, compared to approximately
HK$286,843,000 for 2017, down by approximately 13.1%.
Despite that the Group had conducted various measures in
stringent cost management, closure of underperforming stores
and store relocation to counteract high operating expenses,
mainly staff costs and rental expenses, the Group suffered an
operating loss of HK$21,622,000 (2017: HK$55,135,000).

The profit attributable to the equity shareholders for the year
ended 31 March 2018 was approximately HK$2,007,000 (2017:
loss of HK$52,000,000), with such turnaround from loss to profit
mainly attributable to both the narrowing in operating loss and
the substantial increase of 192.3% in valuation gains on

investment properties.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group financed its
operations with internally generated cash flows. The Group
adopts a prudent financial policy such that it can meet the
financial obligations when they fall due and maintain a
sufficient operating fund for the development of the Group's
business. At the end of the year, the Group’s aggregate fixed
deposits and cash balances amounted to approximately HK$62
million (2017: HK$83 million). Cash and bank deposits were
held mainly in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group has
foreign operations and certain of its net assets are exposed to the
risk of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. During the
year, the Group’s currency exposure mainly arises from the cash
and bank deposits denominated in Renminbi. The management
regularly monitors the foreign currency exchange risk of the

Group and may consider hedging activities when necessary.
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As at 31 March 2018, the Group maintained secured bank loan
of HK$7 million (2017: HK$8 million) at the operating
subsidiary level to provide working capital. As at 31 March
2018, the Group maintained aggregate composite banking
facilities other than secured bank loans of approximately HK$53
million (2017: HK$54 million) with various banks, of which
approximately HK$5 million (2017: HK$5 million) were utilised.

The Group continues to maintain a healthy financial position. As
at 31 March 2018, the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 3.0 times (2017: 2.7 times)
and the gearing ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings and finance
lease payables divided by shareholders’ equity) was 1.1% (2017:
1.3%).

Charge on assets

As at 31 March 2018, leasehold land and buildings with a
carrying value of approximately HK$26 million (31 March 2017:
HK$23 million) were pledged to secure bank loan granted to the

Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group employed 468 (2017: 562)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and mainland China. Salaries
of employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical

insurance cover and training programmes.

COMMITMENT TO STAKEHOLDERS’ INTERESTS, SOCIETY’S
WELL-BEING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group is committed to ensuring the rights and interests of its
stakeholders (including its shareholders, employees and
customers) and the well-being of society at large while
complying with all the laws and regulations of the places where
it has operations, including Hong Kong, mainland China,
Taiwan, Macau and Singapore.
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In addition to its business objective of maximizing returns to
shareholders, the Group also tries its best to fulfil its corporate
social responsibility. For instance, the Group ensures protection
of both environment and consumers against hazardous
substances throughout the process of conducting its business,
from raw material procurement, production to retail. The Group
also has taken measures to ensure that its factory in Shajing,
Shenzhen, complies with the local environmental regulations on
industrial emissions and effluents. The factory is only
responsible for sewing and is not engaged in any dyeing of
fabrics.

The Group believes in consumers’ entitlement to quality and
safe products. To attain this goal, the Group maintains
well-established relationships with trustworthy raw material
suppliers and processing factories, and delivers a sample of each
model of its products to Shenzhen Academy of Metrology and
Quality Inspection for inspection. Besides, the Group also
requires all business partners, raw material suppliers and
production vendors to fulfill all relevant legal and regulatory
requirements on product safety.

The Group now has over 30 suppliers and has business
relationship of more than a decade on average with each of
them. Such well-established business relationships with the
suppliers are attributable to the Group’s success in building their
trust in it with integrity and by honouring the contracts.

The Group has established a customer loyalty program in order
to enhance customer satisfaction as well as to encourage
repeated purchase. Under the membership program, the VIP
customers can enjoy special discounts and regular activities. It
also manages and maintains good customer relations through
customer service hotlines, after-sales supports as well as bespoke
service and communication with members via mails and emails.
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Another group of stakeholders who are also key to the Group’s
success are its employees. The Group offers its staff reasonable
remuneration and benefits and protect their rights according to
the labour laws of the places where it has operations. For
instance, it complies with the relevant laws and regulations on
the employees’ provident fund pension scheme, employment
insurance and safety at work. It also provides training for them
that benefit the development of both their careers and the
Group's business.

The Group aims to accumulate resources for business and use
them effectively to ensure sustainable development. For
instance, it has been enhancing the brand equity of its house
brands and that of the European brands for which it is a
distributor by actively exploring new markets. It has also
allocated resources for the design, research and development of
products and the training of staff. The move was aimed at
manufacturing products of high quality and refreshing designs
with new or improved materials. It also serves to raise the
efficiency of the retail operations. The Group also tries its best to
protect its intellectual property rights and patents and respects
other parties’ intellectual property rights.

The Group also understands that it is not an isolated functioning
unit in the market and society so it has sponsored charitable
work to contribute to the common good. For instance, the Group
sponsored Love Foundation for the support of “left-behind”
children in China during the year.

All these initiatives and measures can contribute to the
sustainability of the Group’s business.

17



18

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i B9 B 4 M A R 2 W

* Annual Report 2018 4B 4¢ it

EEREAE A BN

Directors and Senior Management Profiles

HITES

BRERANSEE » 598 ANARZ EERAEBHE R
MAZ— 2EEEREE 2 BEREITE - A7
BERFAERTSHERE  RRAKEEHREZETET
(¥FEANtT - SEETELR - REENR=ZZ
—F+ - AEERIXLERRERTEIER
B OWREF+T-RARE_ZZT—FDHLEEERER
EREERCRIEERE HEARHAEFRER
SERE ST AFHRGHEAR -RELERE
ZERBHEASEESH T EBE( o I §
R-EENF-PRERBTIXESETIEREAR=
ZZNFREIPR LIRS - AL ECERRRERR
TRTDMNABERHER LT - HERIETRAZEE
ETAREEFEEREEERR T EEABREE
HEEREES  UREBSSHAREBRESR
kR BRASERELAEZECZE - RELEDE
BEFIXRNESERAKELRZEGETH
B BRRERXCAIZEEZE TN 25
HESRNMIKBE - HINBEBERLTIEER -
WHBREBELLT X AERBEREERBREZLEE
2R o

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 59, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 41
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading.
Mr. Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of
Hongkong by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in
November 2001 and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong
Kong Business Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in
December 2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding
Chinese Award by the World Chinese Business Investment
Foundation. Mr. Chan holds an honorary doctorate degree in
management from Armstrong University in the United States. He
was also awarded 2004 Associateship by The Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in January 2004. He
is a senior fellow of Social Enterprise Research Academy and a
fellow member of Asian Knowledge Management Association.
He is currently a member of CreateSmart Initiative Vetting
Committee and of the Design-Business Collaboration Scheme
Assessment Panel under Create Hong Kong, and of the higher
education advisory committee of the faculty of design and
environment of Technological and Higher Education Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member of Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Council and serves on the expert group on fashion
industry under the working group on manufacturing industries,
innovative technology, and cultural and creative industries of
the Economic Development Commission. He is the
vice-chairman of HK Guangxi Chamber of Commerce. He is the
husband of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley and is the father of
Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan Pak Hei.
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Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 59, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group and is the Group’s
vice-chairman. She is responsible for the Group’s
merchandising management and retail operations management.
She has over 41 years of experience in business administration
in various industries including garment manufacturing and
trading. She was awarded Golden Bauhinia Women
Entrepreneur Excellence Award in November 2016. She is a
member of Zonta Club of New Territories, an honorary president
and council member of Hong Kong Federation of Women, a
co-chairman of HK Tianjin Women'’s Federation, a member of
HKFW Women Entrepreneurs Committee and of Hong Kong
Women Professionals & Entrepreneurs Association, a delegate of
All-China Women’s Federation, Zhuhai, and a honorary
president of All-China Women’s Federation Hong Kong
Delegates Association Limited and of the island regional
association of the Hong Kong Girl Guides Association. Ms. Tsui
is the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company, and is the
mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan Pak Hei.

Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 40, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is a member of the Mainland
Business Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development
Council. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company,
and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother of Mr. Chan
Pak Hei.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 58, is an independent
non-executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 30
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial
practice. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from
University of Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then
passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination and qualified as a
solicitor. Ms. Yu has over 29 years’ experience in property
investment and management. She was appointed as
China-appointed Attesting Officer in 2003 and was also
appointed as notary public in December 2009. She is a member
of the Board of Management of the Chinese Permanent

Cemeteries.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 57, is an independent
non-executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently a regional director of Full Throttle Films Limited. He
has 27 years’ experience in international marketing and senior
management role in both the semiconductor and solid-state
lighting industries. Mr. Chu graduated from University of Essex
with a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from University of

Westminster, London.

Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen, aged 64, is an independent
non-executive director appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong
is currently the director of Kimeray Investment Limited. She has
over 30 years’ experience in management consulting and
systems implementation in both the public and private sectors.
Ms. Wong is a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada and holds a bachelor’s degree in
commerce from Queen’s University in Canada. She is a member
of the board of directors and of the fund raising committee, and
the chairman of the information technology committee of Heep
Hong Society, and a co-opted director and the chairman of the
information technology development committee of Hong Kong
YWCA.
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Senior Management

Ms. PANG Lin, aged 48, is the chief operating officer of the
Group and the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2001, Ms. Pang served as a finance
manager and company secretary of a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She
has over 27 years of experience in the audit, accounting and
finance, administration and corporate secretarial fields. She
holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in business administration (fashion business) from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master’s degree in corporate
governance from the Open University of Hong Kong and a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS”) and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries &
Administrators of the United Kingdom, a member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants of the United
Kingdom and a holder of the practitioner’s endorsement of
HKICS.

Mr. CHAN Pak Hei, aged 30, is the creative director of the
Group. He joined the Group in May 2009. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s design and development functions. In
addition, he is also responsible for the Group’s brand building,
marketing and interior design affairs. Mr. Chan Pak Hei holds a
bachelor of arts degree in fashion management (fashion retail)
from University of the Arts London of the United Kingdom. He is
a member of Hong Kong CPPCC Youth Association and a
co-vice-chairperson of the academy ball organising committee of
the Society of the Academy for Performing Arts. He is the son of
Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu,
Shirley, and is the brother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun.
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Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “group”) is committed to meeting statutory and
regulatory requirements and adherence to the principles of
corporate governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Save for the deviation of the Code Provisions A.2.1T and A.6.7 as
below, the company has complied with the code provisions
listed in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.

Code Provisions A.2.1

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. Currently,
Mr. Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board of directors (the
“Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief executive officer.
The Board considers that the current management structure
ensures consistent leadership and optimal efficiency for the
operation of the company. The company will however keep this

matter under review.

Code Provisions A.6.7

Code Provisions A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that the
independent non-executive directors should attend general
meetings of the company. Due to prior business engagements
external to the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian was unable to
attend the annual general meeting of the company held on 13
September 2017.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises six directors, three of which are executive
directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman), Ms. Tsui How
Kiu, Shirley, and Mr. Chan Sze Chun, and three are independent
non-executive directors, namely Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian,
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, five board meetings
were held. One of the meetings was held in accordance with
paragraph A.2.7 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which states
that the Chairman should hold meeting with the non-executive
directors without the executive directors of the company

present. The attendance of each director is set out as follows:

H 7 A2 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 5/5
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 4/4
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 4/4
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 5/5
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 5/5
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 5/5

During the year ended 31 March 2018, one general meeting, the
annual general meeting, was held. The attendance of each

director is set out as follows:

H 5O 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 1/1
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 1/1
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 1/1
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 0/1
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 1/1
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 1/1

The board of directors is responsible for the formulation of
business strategies for the group and the operational decision
making is delegated to the management team.
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The relationship among members of the Board is separately

disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

director are set out as follows:

FreE 28K B

Training received and date

Starting New Change for
New Model

—F-t&ARA=-THMA

Starting New Change for
New Model

24 June 2017

Starting New Change for
New Model

—E-—tFXA=TMIA

Starting New Change for
New Model

24 June 2017

Structure and Constituents of
Mutual Funds

—E-NF=ZATEHH

Structure and Constituents of
Mutual Funds

15 March 2018

BARHE
Training provider

EREEEE

The Hong Kong Institute

of Directors

ERES=ZEg

The Hong Kong Institute

of Directors

]

NN
el
2

&HBR

The Hong Kong Institute

of Bankers

The directors have provided records of the training they received
to the company. The details of training records provided of each

PR A
Time spent

EUN:

3 hours

3/ B

3 hours

17N

1 hour
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Director Training received and date Training provider Time spent

KEGEEE Cyber Security Professional Development 37N B
—E-N\FZA=++tH Resources Centre Limited

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney Cyber Security Professional Development 3 hours
27 February 2018 Resources Centre Limited

BERELZLT Shaping Landscape in Green EEBSRREZS 1/ B

Finance through Green Bonds

—Z—tFt—-—HA—H

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen Shaping Landscape in Green Hong Kong Securities and 1 hour

Finance through Green Bonds
1 November 2017
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j: o
REZEES

ARAREETFEEEETAZRAERIREEZSR
T REZEESHARAMUBYFHITESRE
Bt (EF) REBRRLL  UR—UHTESRK
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Investment Institute

Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian had provided training record on her
fulfillment of the mandatory continuing professional
development requirements of The Law Society of Hong Kong
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a confirmation of independence for the
year ended 31 March 2018 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors

to be independent.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The company has a nomination committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the nomination committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and one
executive director, Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley.
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The main role and function of the nomination committee consist
of formulation and implementation of the nomination policy,
review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of
the Board, and making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors in particular

the chairman and the chief executive.

BOARD DIVERSITY
The company has adopted a board diversity policy which

consists of the following main aspects:

a. Board composition to be reviewed in terms of the size of
the Board, the number of non-executive directors and

executive directors in relation to the overall Board,

b. Board effectiveness which requires members to have diverse
skills, knowledge and experiences that combine to provide
different perspectives and effective board dynamics, and

c. Nominations and appointments to be carried out in view of
maintaining an appropriate mix of required skills,

experience, expertise and diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee is responsible to review the policy
on board diversity and any measurable objectives for its
implementation and to review the progress on achieving the
objectives.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one
executive director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.
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During the year ended 31 March 2018, two remuneration
committee meetings were held. The attendance of each
committee member is set out as follows:

i FE R0 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 2/2
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 2/2
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 2/2

The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration packages and the terms
of employment of the directors and senior management. During
the year, the remuneration committee has approved the terms of

non-executive directors’ appointments.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined
based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set out below:

A
HK$ Number of person
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 1

Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and
individuals with highest emoluments as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes

7 and 8 to the financial statements respectively.
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AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid to external auditors is
analysed as follows:

BT
HKS$
F iR %% Audit services 1,792,000
FEET R Non-audit services _
1,792,000

EREEE AUDIT COMMITTEE

AARMKBLETRAUEI2IRRLEREZES &
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RABEZHE BERESEHARR=ZMUBELHE
HITESER 2R AREZEL T (EF) KM
FERBEARLZL  WOESSER
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The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s
financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems. The audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu
Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, three audit committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each committee member

is set out as follows:

w5 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 3/3
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 3/3
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 3/3

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, and
raised queries and obtained explanations from the management
on issues related to financial and operational control procedures

of the group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of risk management and internal control systems
which are essential for effective and efficient operations of the
group and are fundamental in the thorough and regular
evaluation of the nature and extent of the risks to which the
group is exposed. These systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Internal control is defined
as a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the achievement of objectives in relation to the following:
o Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

e Reliability of financial reporting; and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the group, focusing on three major business cycles of
the group, under COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission) framework. The Board had been
satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of these systems on
monitoring and evaluating the risks. Based on the results, the
directors were dedicated to implement various initiatives to
further enhance the existing risk management and internal
control systems alongside with the ongoing business
development of the group.

During the year, the group has maintained an internal audit
function with internal resources and engaged external
consultants to assist the management in order to identify,
evaluate and manage significant risks of the group.

The group complies with the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission
in view of fulfilling its obligations to disclose inside information
under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and

fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The statement of the independent auditor of the group regarding
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 42 to 56.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

According to article 58 of the company’s articles of association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist himself may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist by the company.

If a member of the public or a shareholder wishes to put forward
enquiries to the Board and/or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings, he/she must deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) to the principal place of business of the company in
Hong Kong at Units 1-5, 11th Floor, Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy
Street East, North Point, Hong Kong, or the branch share
registrar of the company, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for the attention of the company secretary of the company.
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In order for a proposal to be considered in general meetings, the
period for lodgement of the Notice will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice by the company of
the general meeting to be convened and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the Notice is
received less than 15 days prior to the general meeting, the
company will need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting in order to give shareholders 14 days’ notice of the
proposal.

The Notice will be verified with the company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the company will ask the
relevant committee of the company and the Board to consider to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting to

be convened.
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The directors of Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the
company”) presented its annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the company and its
subsidiaries (the “group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The company is a company incorporated and domiciled in the
Cayman lIslands and has its registered office and principal place
of business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Units 1-5, 11/F,
Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy Street East, North Point, Hong Kong
respectively.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the group are the design, manufacture,
retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are
set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

The analysis of geographical location of the operations of the
group during the financial year is set out in note 3(b) to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the businesses of the group during the year, a
discussion on the group’s future business development and an
analysis of the group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators are provided in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 9 and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 17 of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

For principal risks and uncertainties, the directors are aware that
the group is exposed to risks and uncertainties, including those
specific to the group and those having generic impacts. The
management closely monitors the business environment in
which the group operates in order to have opportunities and
threats the group faces identified, reported, monitored and
managed on a continuous basis. Related discussion on certain
risks and uncertainties is provided in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 4 to 9 and the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 10 to 17 of this annual report and note 25 to the
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the percentage of the
five largest customers combined were less than 30% of the
group’s total revenue.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the group’s purchases attributable
to the major suppliers respectively during the financial year is as

follows:
FEERBESTEIL
Percentage of the group’s
purchases total
The largest supplier 25%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 43%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the company (which to the best knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share
capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group for each of the last five financial years is set out on pages
175 and 176.

DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of Hong Kong one cent per share (2017:
Hong Kong one cent per share) was paid on 12 January 2018.
The directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of Hong Kong four cents per share (2017: Hong Kong two cents
per share) in respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 to all
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on
14 September 2018.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the group during the year
amounted to HK$286,000 (2017: HK$495,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the company’s share capital are set out in note 24(c)
to the financial statements. There were no movements during the
year.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000.

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans which are calculated based on certain
prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances
of its PRC employees. The group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with
such plans beyond the annual contributions described above.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME (continued)

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes
at 6% of the total salaries of participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution scheme,
deposited into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of
Labour Insurance of Taiwan.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by the
government of Singapore. This subsidiary and its employees are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
CPF. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPF. The
subsidiary has no further obligations for the actual pension
payments or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to
profit or loss when incurred.
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DIRECTORS
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Mr. Chan Yum Kit and Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with article
87 of the company’s articles of association and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the articles of association of the company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory obligations.
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interest in shares  percentage of interests

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

EESAEH

Approximate

EHEMtE

Nature of interest

Beneficial

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

®RILELZE
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

REREE
Mr. Chan Sze Chun

BERELZLE
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

DA RIE
Corporate/Family
2,100,000 0.73% EN3

Family
2,100,000 0.73% {EPN
Personal

(MaE1)R(2))

(Notes (1) and (2))

193,616,000 67.24%

DA KRR
Corporate/Family
2,100,000 0.73% Ei3

Family
2,100,000 0.73% A
Personal

(HaE1)R(2))

(Notes (1) and (2))

193,616,000 67.24%

900,000 0.31% @ A
Personal

30,000 0.01% {EPN
Personal
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)
Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”) and
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) as to 46.7% and 46.7%
respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be
deemed interested in the 190,000,000 shares held by Super Result
as corporate interest.

3,616,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments
Limited (“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially
owned by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively.
Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed interested
in the 3,616,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2)  Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to each other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui is deemed
interested in as family interest, and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the group. Certain director also has beneficial interest
in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no rights to
dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meeting or to participate in any distribution or winding
up in a subsidiary.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2018 was the company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2018, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholder, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the company which have been disclosed to the company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:

REABE2BERT
Bz BAE DT
Approximate percentage
of aggregate interests to
total issued shares

FRROAH
Aggregate long
position in shares

Super Result

HtaE - Super Result 2R ATSHR EERRLZ T HBIE
BEE46.7%K%46.7% °

BREMRER EX[ESREIBTHRAERES 2E
wm | —EHEARREEREEZTHRAS 2 EHI
BRAQARERZRPERDEIBMZRER
BExELMrRsE R=E-—N\F=A=1+—-8"
WEHEMATRARARONBERD PHEEER

RAA o

190,000,000 65.99% (B1&E) (Note)

Note: The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by
Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 46.7% and 46.7% respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in securities”
above, no person was recorded in the register kept by the
company under section 336 of the SFO as having an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the company
as at 31 March 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, in which a director of the
company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain material related party transactions as set out in note
28(a) to the financial statements fall under the definition of
continuing connected transactions in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The transactions are exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33(3) of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the company.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the
directors of the company is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.
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AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution of the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

By order of the board

Chan Yum Kit
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the group”) set out on pages 57 to 172, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the group
as at 31 March 2018 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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Potential impairment of leasehold improvements in retail stores and provisions for onerous operating lease contracts

Refer to notes 2(a), 2(b), 11 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(i)(ii)

and 1(q)(ii).

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The cost of renting retail store premises represents a
significant portion of the group’s operating costs. The
majority of the non-cancellable operating leases for the
rental of retail store premises run for an initial period of

one to three years.

Economic conditions impact consumer sentiment and
spending power such that the sales performance of each
retail store can fluctuate significantly during its lease term.
There is a risk that the carrying value of leasehold
improvements in some retail stores may not be recoverable
in full through the future cash flows to be generated from
operations of that retail store or from disposal of the

leasehold improvements.

The group sustained losses from operations for the years
ended 31 March 2017 and 2018 which management
considered was an indicator of potential impairment of
leasehold improvements in retail stores as at 31 March
2018.

In addition, future cash flows generated from some retail
stores could be lower than the unavoidable costs of
meeting the financial obligations under the operating lease

contracts of the respective stores.

Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment of
leasehold improvements in retail stores and provisions for

onerous operating lease contracts included the following:

e evaluating management’s identification of
cash-generating units (“CGUs"), the allocation of
assets to each CGU identified and the impairment
assessment methodology adopted by management
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing

accounting standards;

e considering whether the discounted cash flow
forecast for each CGU supported the carrying value
of the relevant assets or exceeded the value of the
future financial obligations under the
non-cancellable operating leases and whether
management’s impairment assessments indicated that
a reversal of a previously recognised impairment
provision or provision for onerous operating lease

contracts was required;

e performing a retrospective review of the impairment
assessments carried out by management in the
previous year by comparing the forecasts of revenue
and operating profit with the current year’s
performance to assess the reliability of management’s

forecasting process;
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Potential impairment of leasehold improvements in retail stores and provisions for onerous operating lease contracts

Refer to notes 2(a), 2(b), 11 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(i)(ii)

and 1(q)(ii).

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Management performed impairment assessments of
leasehold improvements in retail stores by determining
their recoverable amounts using discounted cash flow
forecasts which involved the exercise of significant
management judgement, particularly in estimating future
revenue, future margins, future staff costs, future rental

expenses and the discount rates applied.

We identified potential impairment of leasehold
improvements in retail stores and potential provisions for
onerous operating lease contracts to be a key audit matter
because the future cash flows and profits of the retail
stores are inherently uncertain and determining the level of
provisions required, if any, involves a significant degree of
management judgement which could be subject to

potential bias.

e comparing the most significant inputs used in the
preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts,
including future revenue, future margins, future staff
costs and future rental expenses, with the historical
performance of these retail stores and the budgets
and forecasts approved by directors, taking into
account recent developments in the retail sector and

the future operating plans for the group;

e assessing the discount rates used in the cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against those of

comparable retailers;

e performing sensitivity analyses of key assumptions,
including future revenue, future margins and the
discount rates applied, and considering the resulting
impact on the impairment charge and provisions for
onerous operating lease contracts and whether there

were any indicators of management bias;

e enquiring of the Group Chief Operating Officer and
senior members of the sales team about any plans for

retail store downsizing or closures; and

e considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the impairment
assessment of leasehold improvements in retail stores
and provisions for onerous operating lease contracts
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing

accounting standards.
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Valuation of inventories

Refer to notes 2(c) and 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 1(j).

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Sales of inventories in the fashion industry can be volatile
with consumer tastes and preferences changing according
to the latest fashion trends.

The group typically sells or disposes of off-season
inventories at a markdown from the original price to make
room for new season inventories in its retail stores.
Accordingly, the actual future selling prices of some items
of inventory may fall below their purchase costs.

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because the judgement exercised by management in
determining an appropriate level of inventory provisions
involves predicting the amount of inventories unsold at the
end of each season and the markdowns necessary to sell
such off-season inventories through outlets and other
channels in the ensuing periods, both of which can be
inherently uncertain.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of inventories
included the following:

e assessing whether the inventory provisions at the
reporting date were consistent with the group’s
inventory provisioning policy by recalculating the
inventory provisions based on the percentages and
other parameters specified in the group’s inventory
provisioning policy with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

e assessing on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing report were classified within the
appropriate ageing brackets by comparing the
individual items selected with underlying records
which indicated the season of production of the item;

e evaluating the group’s inventory provisioning policy
by comparing management’s forecasts of the unsold
amount of inventories at the end of each season and
the corresponding forecast markdowns with the
historical sales amounts and markdown data for the
current and prior years;

e comparing inventory balances by season against the
respective balances in prior years and the movement
by season against historical movements to identify
inventories which are relatively slow moving;

e comparing, on a sample basis, the carrying value of
inventory items at the reporting date with actual sales
prices achieved for those inventories subsequent to
the reporting date; and

e enquiring of the Group Chief Operating Officer and
senior members of the sales team about any expected
changes in plans for markdowns or disposals of
off-season inventories and comparing their
representations with actual sales transactions
subsequent to the reporting date.
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Valuation of investment properties and land and buildings held for own use

Refer to notes 2(d) and 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(f) and 1(g).

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The group holds several investment properties in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, which comprise shops, offices
and warehouses, for rental income and capital
appreciation purposes which are stated at their fair values
at each reporting date. The group also holds several land
and buildings in Hong Kong and Mainland China for its
own use, which comprise offices, warehouses and
directors” quarter. These properties are stated at annually
revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated

depreciation at each reporting date.

The group’s investment properties and land and buildings
held for own use were valued at HK$196,628,000 and
HK$439,244,000 as at 31 March 2018, respectively.

The fair values of the investment properties (valued using
the income capitalisation method or the direct
comparison method) and land and buildings held for own
use (valued using the direct comparison method) were
assessed by the directors based on independent
valuations prepared by a professionally qualified
independent firm of surveyors. The key estimates and
assumptions adopted by the external property valuer
included rental yields and the selection of comparable

market transactions.

We identified the valuation of investment properties and
land and buildings held for own use as a key audit matter
because the valuations of these properties requires the
exercise of significant judgement and estimation which

increases the risk of error or potential management bias.

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of investment
properties and land and buildings held for own use

included the following:

e obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports
prepared by the external property valuer engaged by
the group and on which the directors’ assessment of
the fair values of investment properties and land and

buildings held for own use was based;

e assessing the external property valuer’s qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being
valued and considering their objectivity and

independence;

e with the assistance of our internal property valuation
specialists, discussing with the external property
valuer, without the presence of management, and
challenging the valuation methodology applied and
the key estimates and assumptions adopted in their
valuations by comparing the rental yields and
comparable market transactions adopted by the
external property valuer with available market data,
on a sample basis, and utilising the industry
knowledge and experience of our internal property

valuation specialists; and

e undertaking an analysis of each property valuation,
comparing the movements in capital values over the
year by obtaining evidence of comparable sales in the
neighbourhood of each property and assessing
whether the external evidence was consistent with the

values provided by the external property valuer.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the group’s financial

reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s

internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Hui Sau Yee, Jenny.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 June 2018
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HE-Z-—/N\F=A=+—HILFE UABKEFIR) For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—B-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
M5 T Fr
Note $’000 $000
iz Revenue 3 290,576 280,397
SHE K Cost of sales (68,787) (60,798)
ER Gross profit 221,789 219,599
HlA Other revenue 4 6,773 8,057
Hitt (5#8) /WP Other net (loss)/gain 4 (1,017) 4,052
HER DB Selling and distribution costs (179,386) (214,400)
THRREMEERS Administrative and other operating expenses (69,781) (72,443)
rEEE Loss from operations (21,622) (55,135)
& AR Finance costs 5(a) (189) (185)
REYE 2 HERS Valuation gains on investment properties 11 27,594 9,440
BEERALTRESEY Valuation gains on land and buildings held
pARTET & for own use 11 = 612
EBEEE QT2
wAL (1) Share of profit/(loss) of a joint venture 13 577 (2,632)
BREBAER, (BE) Profit/(loss) before taxation 5 6,360 (47,900)
Fris®i Income tax 6(a) (5,099) (4,578)
FERERN, (BE) Profit/(loss) for the year 1,261 (52,478)
THALRER : Attributable to:
RREEERR Equity shareholders of the company 2,007 (52,000)
FERER Non-controlling interests (746) (478)
FERERN, (FE) Profit/(loss) for the year 1,261 (52,478)
SREFN, (FR) Earnings/(loss) per share 10
HEARKR#E Basic and diluted $0.01 $(0.18)

FBSEINEZHMEBAMBHRR 22— - B
AA AR R RS FRER (BR) 2BERE
FBERHIEE23(b) ©

The notes on pages 65 to 172 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the company attributable to the profit/(loss) for the year are set out
in note 23(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-Z—/\F=A=+—HILFE ABEZIR) For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-N\F —E—tHF
2018 2017
M= Fr T
Note $’000 $000
FRER, (BR)  Profit/(loss) for the year 1,261 (52,478)
FREMmZ2EKE (KRB Other comprehensive income for
i) the year (after tax) 9
REETTEEEF #EEZE  Item that may be reclassified
ZHEA : subsequently to profit or loss:
BEEBEIINFEBATIIE Exchange differences on translation of
BERZERZESE financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong 11,781 (11,788)
REBETEEH 7 HEZ/  Item that will not be reclassified to
wmZIEH profit or loss:
BEERLREEYZE  Surplus on revaluation of land and
fhBek buildings held for own use 61,191 20,011
e~ 72972 . 8,223
FREHEKNEHEE Total comprehensive income for the year 74,233 (44,255)
THAL A Attributable to:
RABEHERE Equity shareholders of the company 74,979 (43,777)
IR ER Non-controlling interests (746) (478)
FREERHAE Total comprehensive income for the year 74,233 (44,255)
BSBIMNEZHEBABGBHER 2 —ZD - The notes on pages 65 to 172 form part of these financial

statements.
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R-ZT—N\E=A=+—8 (AE%5IR) At 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—EB-N\F -5
2018 2017

M = T T T T

Note $’000 $'000 $000 $/000
FRBEE Non-current assets
REWHE Investment properties 11 196,628 155,855
ME - BRERZE Property, plant and equipment 11 449,190 398,617
REE ARz R Interest in a joint venture 13 - -
HthEE Other assets 14 13,565 21,397
RIEFFEHERE Deferred tax assets 20(b) 3,437 3,831

662,820 579,700

REBEE Current assets
EFE Inventories 15 49,204 53,635
FEWERF R M FEWER  Trade and other receivables 16 44,096 30,343
I ERIE Tax recoverable 20(a) 29 772
BeRIBITER Cash and bank deposits 17(a) 62,173 83,318
_________________________________________________________________ 155,502 168,068
P A= Current liabilities
BRERR R EMEMNTK  Trade and other payables 18 42,918 41,690
FEAFE Tax payable 20(a) 89 968
BEARITER Secured bank loans 21 7,073 7,654
BiE Provisions 22 1,898 13,014
... 00978 63326
REBEETFE Net current assets 103,524 104,742
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R-ZT—N\E=A=+—H (AB%75IR) At 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—B-N\E —B—+tF
2018 2017
B 5E Fr Fr Fr Tr
Note $000 $’000 $'000 $000
BEERARBAMBHEE  Total assets less current
liabilities 766,344 684,442
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
EEFEHEE Deferred tax liabilities 20(b) 94,254 77,947
BEEFE NET ASSETS 672,090 606,495
BEX LA CAPITAL AND RESERVES
%N Share capital 23(c) 2,880 2,880
% Reserves 669,834 603,493
ADRRAEZRREE  Total equity attributable to
RBRER equity shareholders of the
company 672,714 606,373
FEIE RS Non-controlling interests (624) 122
BRI R ER TOTAL EQUITY 672,090 606,495
gxepN-—E2— \EAA-+t-BARELHFTERE - Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
22 June 2018.
)
)
) E = Directors
BRERAR BRIE )
Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )
BSEINEZMEBARYBRFK < —B D ° The notes on pages 65 to 172 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZZT—)\F=A=1+—HILFE (ABEZIR) For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

KLTRBRRRE
Attributable to equity shareholders of the company
4R
BEY
#E Etifik
BYOR Land and 4k3
B RitEE EHEE EiRE Statutory buildings REEA FERER &
Share Share Other Exchange reserve revaluation Retained &3t Non-controlling Total
aapital premium reserve reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity
it oo i v i o i i i o v
Note §/000 §/000 §000 §'000 §/000 §000 §000 §'000 §/000 §000
HZ%-A% Balance as at 1 April 2016
mE-Az&% 2,880 05,327 n 30,09 9,336 319449 231,580 058,788 - 058,788
ZE-RE/-EE Changesin equity for 2016/17:
LBEZE:
EhER Loss for the year - - - - - - (52,000 (32,000) 478) (52478
Afp2EhE Other comprehensive income 9 - - - (11,788 - 20,011 - 8223 - 8223
ENEEE Total comprehensive income - - - (11,788) - 20001 (52,000) w3, (478) (44,255)
FERRREE Contribution from a non-contrlling
shareholder - - - - - - - - 600 600
EECHEZRE  Dividend approved in respect of
the previous year b - - - - - - (5,759) (5,759 - (5,759)
REECETZRE  Dividend declared in respect of
the current year 23bif) - - - - - - (2679) 2879 - (2679)

RZB-tEZF  Balance at 31 March 2017
t-B2kh 2,860 05,327 1 18,307 9336 339,460 170,942 606,373 [ 606,495
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-Z—/\F=A=+—HILFE ABEZIR) For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ARARBRRES
Attributable to equity shareholders of the company
T#E
BEN
R EfiRE
BHLR Land and BRR
R& RiER Rtbfif EiGE Statutory buildings REREH FERER &
Share Share Other Exchange reserve  revaluation Retained @zt Non-controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity
it i i v i i T v i i v
Note §000 §/000 §000 §000 §000 §/000 §000 §000 §/000 §/000
HZB-tf Balance as at 1 April 2017
MA-R2EH 2,880 05,327 m 18,307 9,336 339,460 170,942 606,373 m 606,495
ZZ-tE/-NE  Changes n equity for 2017/18;
LRESY:
EREA/ (B5B)  Profitfloss)forthe year - - - 5 o a 2,007 2007 (746) 1,261
Afe2Ehg Other comprehensive income 9 - - - 11,781 - 61,191 - 7971 - 72,972
PENEEE Total comprehensive income = = = 11,781 = 61,191 2,007 74979 (746) 74,233
EEBHEZRE  Dividend approved inrespect of the
previous year 23(b)i) - - - - - - (5,759) (5,759) - (5,759)
KEEBERZRE  Dividend declared in respectof the
_____________ weetyer B e s ity ey - )
HZZ3-NEZF  Balanceat 31 March 2018
t-R2kh 2,880 05,327 m 30,088 9,336 400,651 164,311 672,714 (624) 672,090
FSEINBEZHMFB AT KRR 2 —D o The notes on pages 65 to 172 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-Z-—/N\F=A=+—HILFE UABKEFIR) For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-\F —E—tF
2018 2017
B aE Fr Fr T T
Note $/000 $/000 $000 $000
REED Operating activities
KEEKFTA 2B E Cash used in operations 17(b) (10,631) (35,025)
B HIE Tax paid
-BREBRBH - Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (57) -
—REEBFEH - Hong Kong Profits Tax
refunded 712 763
—BERMIEH — Income tax outside
FriSHt Hong Kong paid (1,217) (1,444)
REEBRAZ Net cash used in operating
HeFE activities (11,193) (35,706)
REED Investing activities
BAYE BEK  Payment for purchase of
RIER property, plant and equipment (6,209) (9,206)
HEWE - BER  Proceeds from disposal of
RBATE IR property, plant and equipment 710 -
HEBE NFIME  Proceeds from disposal of an
B associate = 650
2WFE Interest received 443 1,103
REFBHMAZ Net cash used in investing
HeFE activities (5,056) (7,453)
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HEBEWER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-Z—/\F=A=+—HILFE ABEZIR) For the year ended 31 March 2018 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-N\fF —E—tF
2018 2017
B aE Fr Fr Fr Fr
Note $/000 $’000 $000 $000
MEED Financing activities
2 RE Interest paid (189) (185)
SRR T ER Dividends paid to equity
BRzZKEE shareholders of the company (8,638) (8,638)
FERBEZEE  Contribution from a
non-controlling shareholder - 600
BERTER Repayment of bank loans (581) (582)
BMEEBTAZ Net cash used in financing
HEeFHE activities (9,408) (8,805)
RERATE Net decrease in cash and cash
EMRELFE equivalents (25,657) (51,964)
RENZRER Cash and cash equivalents at
RE%EY beginning of the year 83,318 138,983
EXgB o2& Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes 4,512 (3,701)
RERZRER Cash and cash equivalents
REeEEY at end of the year 17(a) 62,173 83,318
BSBINECHEBAYBHRER 2 -2 - The notes on pages 65 to 172 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FTEEHEE

(@)

(b)

BHE A
ZEVBBRCRREBETMASHE
B ER Z(ERMBEHREER) (s
MESMAEERZERN(EBYBIREE
By (BEREFEARER) BB
REFRARBB(DAGRE) 2 WER
EMFmE - ZEPBRRITFE(EBH
EXGRERLDRZLHRAD ZER
REAE - AEBRANETESHHER
BRTX-

BEEMASCEMAE THERES
AR (BB BHREER)  IRAEE
ZAREE HRE R A S T R R R o
RASTHBRABT2ETHB - BOR
FERZEEREEABcERZHME
HEFBREREH o EHNERREZEY
BERD - LERME 10 e

R B R
BE-_Z-—N\E=ZA=1+—-HLEEZ
GARBREREAAARENEL T
(BB EAERDURAEBREE D
T 2R

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by

the group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
group. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial

statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018 comprise the company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “group”) and

the group’s interest in a joint venture.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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FHh o BRI BT NREEER - A
FRAFERGHETENER - W2HE
HEEt 2 BT BB R AR - BIA
A ENERRURHBER -

FHEEERER(E BV BREEL)
BATEL M RRREEASE AL
REEFHRRZAFTRRER - BRH

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment properties (see note 1(f)); and

- other leasehold land and buildings, where the
leasehold land is classified as being held under a

finance lease (see notes 1(g) and 1(h)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 2.
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TEEHBER(E)
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B BEZ2E
EREEMASEEMZEAREE ZA
ST HBERER (BB BEHRELER)
BRI - ZE B AHAEE S5 HREM
BEE AWM SRHFE17(d)FEHE
IMREUFEEBETTER SR 2B
NEEHEZR RETEHINHFHER
Ko ZETREREBRFELEKE - 0%
BREMEERATIEBETHAHRN
EERE BERSRELPNIREE
B o

SEYEEANASHBEERERZ
ST RT Z RS2 -

MEQRRFERES
MELARREZIAEEZEFHNAR - FE
BAEAEREZESHEBEERFSEZ
AZEHRNERRER  WEBEBBHEETZ
ERNEAZEZEER  AKEHZ
ERAAEYE BEFEFKEREAS
ZENE AEER (RAASEHEMA
TRHEZ)BEE-

SERMBARANKREDAEHRSEA
HEZEZRHKLLARLERSBBRE
PEREFE - REREIERNGRE - £H
NBRERREAREELENEARE
REf  HEREGSUBEBRRBEDBE
i REANRETEENRERERN
EEFEREARBREFMER - BKHEER
RREERBEERCEREECHEM
@ o

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued several amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the group. None of these impact
on the accounting policies of the group. However,
additional disclosure has been included in note 17(d)
to satisfy the new disclosure requirements introduced
by the amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash
flows: Disclosure initiative, which require entities to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes

arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

The group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group. The
group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the group has power, only substantive rights

(held by the group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
company, and in respect of which the group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable

assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the

equity shareholders of the company.

Changes in the group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are

made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

In the company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).



Moiselle International Holdings Limited ¥ i B4 B 48 M A R 2 5]

+ Annual Report 2018 44 #

S 25t A B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FESHBKR (&)

(€ BEAQT
EEDANEN LT AREERAK
AFHEEMEELNENT NI ZHZE
ZHEHE  WEBZERECEETF
@ o

BERAZRERRESENGAUH
BRI - RIBERE - RELUARS
AR LRABEMARERNBEAEER
WEBEARLBERECEATHRIATFIEEN
DRE(WMEA)  HERAKBEAMERR
ERXFEEERBEANEBREHER
EvREARESEFHAR (RME
1(0) o {EIRUEE B ZBHAZA - AEH
FEMBRECERBBRZBREFE
RERAMNEFREFEERGEER
RPHER  MARBEFERIRERERK
BRoRBEEMERRE  AIRGER
mREMEERERTER -

HEAKRERESERARAZBRBMA
Fribfs - AIAKENESERES X
SELRIE-DEER  HAREEPIAE
MEEREEEERERRECEEN
ZERERI - RMUBHTME - AREEFS
ZERDEESETE2REREE &
BEELEBRAEENREGERRZRE
FEHHEMRAERS -

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the group
or company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to

the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 1(i)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas
the group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items
of the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income.

When the group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the joint venture, the group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the group’s
interest is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the group’s net

investment in the joint venture.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

®

Joint ventures (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the group and its joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit

or loss.

When the group ceases to have significant influence
over joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence or joint control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a

financial asset.

In the company’s statement of financial position,
investments in joint venture are stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
1(h)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently

undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in
note 1(r)(ii).
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

M

(g

Investment properties (continued)

When the group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, the interest is classified and
accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease
(see note 1(h)), and the same accounting policies are
applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.
Lease payments are accounted for as described in note

1(h).

Other property, plant and equipment

The land held for own use classified as being held
under finance lease and buildings thereon (see note
1(h)) are stated at their revalued amount, being their
fair value at the date of the revaluation less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does
not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of the

reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held
for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation

reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

—  when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the

revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or

loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the land and buildings revaluation reserve to

retained profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g

(h)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
terms of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being 50 years from the date of completion.

—  Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of
5 years and the
period of the lease

- Plant and machinery 10 years

—  Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

- Computer and office 3 to 5 years
equipment
- Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the group

Assets that are held by the group under leases
which transfer to the group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the group are classified as

operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property is classified as investment
property on a property-by-property basis and,
if classified as investment property, is
accounted for as if held under a finance lease

(see note 1(f)); and

- land held for own use under an operating

lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of
the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the group, or taken over

from the previous lessee.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Leased assets (continued)

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment

property (see note 1(f)).
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1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets

(1)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost are reviewed at each end of the
reporting period to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the group about

one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in fair
value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and
other receivables (continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss

is determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in joint ventures accounted for
under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see note 1(e)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with note 1(i)
(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount in

accordance with note 1(i)(ii).

—  For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to

the collective group.
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1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(1)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and

other receivables (continued)
If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against
trade debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

- Property, plant and equipment (other than

properties carried at revaluated amounts);

- Interest in a joint venture; and

- Investments in subsidiaries in the company’s

statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently

(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of
an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in

the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited, the group is required to prepare an

interim financial report in compliance with HKAS

34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the

first six months of the financial year. At the end

of the interim period, the group applies the same

impairment testing, recognition, and reversal

criteria as it would at the end of the financial

year (see notes 1(i)(i) and (ii)).
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1)

(k)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary

to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance

for impairment of doubtful debts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fee payable, using the effective

interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(q)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0)

(p)

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of

termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect

of previous years.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that
will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or

credit can be utilised.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is

probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 1(f), the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting
date unless the property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the company or
the group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the

following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
company or the group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

-  the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.
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1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

()

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms

of a debt instrument.

Where the group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income within trade and other
payables. The fair value of financial guarantees
issued at the time of issuance is determined by
reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise
estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the group’s policies applicable
to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss

on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(q)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of
that claim on the group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the group or
the company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits

is remote.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the customers have
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease

payments receivable.

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

effective interest method.

(iv) Service fee income
Service fee income is recognised when the
related services are rendered and the amount

receivable can be measured reliably.
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(i)

(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies

Functional currency and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the group’s subsidiaries are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains

and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately

in equity in the exchange reserve.
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TESHBE (&) 1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) INEBRE(E) (s) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)
(i) (#& (ii) (continued)
EHEBBRNERR  BZEB On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
BAEBEREcRIAEREESE the cumulative amount of the exchange
BRHEZENNEIEFHARRE differences relating to that operation outside
BEHOBEBEHEK - Hong Kong is reclassified from equity to profit or

loss when the profit or loss on disposal is

recognised.

t FBEES (t) Borrowing costs
NEEZERBE BENLERREE  Z Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
EEEA-BRREEAUEBEERERE acquisition, construction or production of an asset
NIHE IO IEMEERAE  9ERLESR which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
ZHEEENE D A - A fEER AR get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
BEEZHEXHE - part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs

are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

() BEBAL (u) Related parties
(1) BAT AL BIZALTHZAL (1) A person, or a close member of that person’s
ZAHEEBRRE family, is related to the group if that person:
() EHRHEREHER (i) has control or joint control over the group;
(i) HEBMBEAZE X (i) has significant influence over the group; or
(i) AEESREERRARAZEEE (iii) is a member of the key management
EEKNE - personnel of the group or the group’s

parent.
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1.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Related parties (continued)

(2) An entity is related to the group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii

The entity and the group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

group or an entity related to the group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the group or to the group’s parent.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Related parties (continued)
(2) An entity is related to the group if any of the

following conditions applies: (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the group’s various geographical

locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.
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2.  ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 11(c) and 24 contain information about the

assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of

properties and financial instruments. Other key sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment have any indication of impairment in
accordance with the relevant accounting policies. If
such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of the
assets would be determined by reference to value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal. Value in use is
determined using the discounted cash flow method.
Due to inherent risk associated with estimations in the
timing and magnitude of the future cash flows and fair
value less costs of disposal, the estimated recoverable
amount of the assets may be different from its actual
recoverable amount and profit or loss could be

affected by the accuracy of the estimations.

Provision for onerous contract

The group recognises a provision for onerous contracts
based on the estimated unavoidable costs of meeting all
leases and other obligations under the retail stores, net of
economic benefits expected to be received from the stores,
if any. The group estimates the provision based on the
amount of compensation payment agreed with the landlord
as a result of early termination of leases, unfulfilled lease
obligations, and economic benefits estimated to be
received from fulfilling the lease contracts. Estimates differ
depending on the current rent, location, lease exit terms
and management’s assessment of when the lease term can
be terminated early and expected benefits to be received
from fulfilling the leases. Except for stores which
termination contracts have already been agreed with the
landlords, the settlement of these contracts may be different
from the group’s estimation subject to the negotiation with
the landlords and the economic benefits estimated to be

received.
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2.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(o)

(d)

(e)

Write-down of inventories

The group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analysis, historical consumption trends and
management judgement. Based on this review,
write-down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories decline below their
estimated net realisable value. Due to changes in
market trends, actual consumption may be different
from estimation and profit or loss could be affected by

accuracy of this estimation.

Valuation of investment properties and land and
buildings held for own use

The fair values of the group’s investment properties
and land and buildings for own use are calculated by
an independent firm of surveyors by making reference
to the rental yields and comparable market
transactions. The valuation models used by the
property valuer make use of market inputs. Should
changes be made to the market inputs, the
corresponding investment properties and land and

buildings held for own use valuations would change.

Impairment of trade debtors

If objective evidence indicates that the carrying
amount of trade debtors may not be recoverable, the
assets may be considered “impaired” and an
impairment loss may be recognised. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the group about loss events
such as significant financial difficulty of the debtor. If
there is a change in the objective evidence of
impairment in relation to the debtors, the actual
impairment loss would be higher or lower than the
allowance for doubtful debts recognised in the

financial statements.
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2.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)

(®

(g

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deductible differences. As
those deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the unused tax credits can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow

the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Taxation, indirect taxes and duties

Determining the provision for income tax, indirect
taxes and duties involves judgement, including the
interpretation and application of tax and other
legislation, on the future treatment of certain
transactions. The group carefully evaluates the tax and
other implications of transactions and, provisions are
set up accordingly. The treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in, including interpretation of, tax and other
legislation. Where the final outcome of these
transactions is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
provisions in the year in which such determination is

made.
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3.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

(b)

Revenue
The principal activities of the group are the design,
manufacture, retail and wholesale of fashion apparel

and accessories.

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold,

excluding value added tax and net of trade discounts.

Segment reporting

The group manages its businesses by geographical
locations. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the
group has presented the following two reportable
segments. No operating segments have been

aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

- The Hong Kong operation represents the sales of

house brands and imported brands in Hong Kong.

- The Outside Hong Kong operation represents the
manufacture of house brands in Mainland China
and sales of house brands and imported brands in

Mainland China, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore.
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3.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to

each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation of assets attributable
to those segments. However, assistance provided
by one segment to another, including sharing of

assets, is not measured.

The measure used for reportable segment loss is
loss from operations with the exception of other
revenue and net (loss)/gain. Income tax is not

allocated to reportable segments.

Segment assets and liabilities of the group are not
reported to the group’s most senior executive
management regularly. As a result, reportable
segment assets and liabilities have not been

presented in these financial statements.

The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as the group’s accounting

policies described in note 1.
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Wi & 2 B (F)

(b)

DEEE (AF)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) 7 EBFAE () (i) Segment results (continued)
BE-ZE-N\ER-ZE—tF=A Information regarding the group’s reportable
Z+-BLEFE - BRERAEEEK segments as provided to the group’s most senior
BITHEEBAEEMREHUASEE executive management regularly for the purposes
BRAEIBRRZAEHEATE of resource allocation and assessment of segment
BoB2EHEHINWT : performance for the years ended 31 March 2018

and 2017 is set out below:
N BREH st
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Total
ZB-N\F ZE-t§ ZB-N\f ZF-tF ZB-N\f “E-iF
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
T T Tr Tr T Tr
$000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000

MREFE W Revenue from external customers 155,616 150,379 134,960 130,018 290,576 280,397

A EEKE Inter-segment revenue 32,808 31,108 22,306 29,481 55,114 60,589

AFEZHRAMUKE  Reportable segment revenue 188,424 181,487 157,266 159,499 345,690 340,986

ATEHRDMWER  Reportable segment loss (8530)  (34,086)  (18,848)  (33,158)  (27,378)  (67,244)

BTBEHZAE  Interest income from bank deposits

L ON 284 307 156 780 440 1,087

BMERA Finance costs (189) (185) = - (189) (185)

ERiE Depreciation for the year 8537) (99290 (9991  (9,056)  (18,528)  (18,985)

W BEKRSE  Impairment losses on property,

ZHEER plant and equipment (16) (1,263) (3,224) (1,564) (3,240) (2,827)

EESHBERE  Net reversal of provision for/

J(B5) B4 (provision for) onerous contracts 4,841 (1,958) 6,275 1,093 11,116 (865)

FEWERF 2 ME  Reversal of impairment losses

BiERE on trade debtors - - 5 490 5 490

B4 AAFER  Provision for impairment loss

HAMEWHEE  on deposits, prepayment and
ERERE other receivables = (1,285) = - = (1,285)
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3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

loss

(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue and

—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
T Fx
$’000 $'000
W &= Revenue
REBF2HOEM2EULE Total revenue from reportable segments 345,690 340,986
S SE: Elimination of inter-segment revenue (55,114) (60,589)
mE W Consolidated revenue 290,576 280,397
[ Loss
BFERFDIERE Reportable segment loss (27,378) (67,244)
Httg A& (B5#8]) Other revenue and net (loss)/gain
W s R 5 5,756 12,109
B E AN Finance costs (189) (185)
BREYEZHERS Valuation gains on investment properties 27,594 9,440
BEERTRESEY Valuation gains on land and buildings
pAR L held for own use - 612
BiEEE QA2 Share of profit/(loss) of a joint venture
mA, (E1E) 577 (2,632)
BRI &SRR, (BB)  Consolidated profit/(loss) before taxation 6,360 (47,900)
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Wi KD BRE (&)

(b)

DEIRE (F)
(iii) HEEH

TRHEINBHEODAEEIRTF K
) RNAEEREWSE W%
BERREBUARNREE DR 2ER
(EEFRBDEE]) 2HBUESR
Ko B F 2t BN ETIIRIERER
BRRXNERZUEEE - EEHF
RBEEZHMBUNENREEEZ
BRAUE (MEREMEARDE
BERRZRE) RELHE (HERE
ERR D) MEE -

3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(iif)

Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the group’s revenue
from external customers; and (ii) the group’s
investment properties, property, plant and
equipment, and interest in a joint venture
(“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at
which the services were provided or the goods
were delivered. The geographical location of the
specified non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the asset, in the case of
investment properties and property, plant and
equipment, and the location of operations, in the

case of interest in a joint venture.

HREFEF WS EEXRBDEE
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
—B-N\F —B—tF —2-N\F Bt
2018 2017 2018 2017
Fr Fr Fr T
$000 $’000 $/000 $'000
BB Hong Kong 155,616 150,379 476,184 388,874
R A 3 Mainland China 48,562 43,591 169,151 160,270
Al Taiwan 27,219 31,622 452 514
| Macau 48,651 44,860 4 4,714
3N Singapore 10,528 9,945 27 100
e 134960 130,018 .~ 169,634 165,598
290,576 280,397 645,818 554,472
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Wik D B|RE (&) 3. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b)y ZEWEHE (E) (b) Segment reporting (continued)

(iv) BBEFEEFZE# (iv) Information about major customers
BEZZ-N\ER-ZE—tF=A During the years ended 31 March 2018 and
=+—HLEEFEE #MEREE—IH 2017, there was no single external customer that
RABEFZWREAEERERE 2 contributed 10% or more of the group’s total
10%3R A ko revenue.

HMW AR (BEB) W FEHE 4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET (LOSS)/GAIN
—E-N\F —E—tHF
2018 2017
T Tt
$’000 $'000
Hbug A Other revenue
RITFERZFEWA Interest income from bank deposits 440 1,087
REMEHRSWALLE Gross rental income from investment
properties 4,496 5,076
BR 75 & W2 A Service fee income 764 950
Hith Others 1,073 944
6,773 8,057
Hit (518 B B8 Other net (loss)/gain
HEME BERRBZ Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
Wi (E58) F5 plant and equipment 487 2)
HEBE QR 2 WS FEE Net gain on disposal of an associate = 949
EH (8 WRFE Net exchange (loss)/gain (1,504) 3,105

(1,017) 4,052
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BRBLATE R (B 1R) 5. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
BRBADER, (BB) EMER (Gt A) ¢ Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
—B-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
Tr Tr
$'000 $'000
@ MERE (@) Finance costs
RITERRBITERZAE Interest on bank loans and bank advances 189 185
(b) BIRE(FEHE (b) Staff costs (excluding directors’
BEEMe (HiE)) emoluments (note 7))
REMPEBAE B ZHER Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 5,026 6,185
o ITEREMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 81,435 83,732
86,461 89,917
(o HHEAR (c) Other items
BB & - Fet R Auditors’ remuneration — audit services 1,792 1,689
e Depreciation 18,528 18,985
ME - BERRE Impairment losses on property,
ZHERBE plant and equipment 3,240 2,827
YRS AESERR Reversal of impairment losses
on trade debtors (5) (490)
BE - ANRER Provision for impairment losses on deposits,
Hfth FE R prepayment and other receivables
ZHEBERE - 1,285
BEEEHESN Net (reversal of provision for)/provision
(BERE) BETE for onerous operating lease contracts (11,116) 865
T REEYZKEE Operating lease charges in respect of
HEER land and buildings
-BREBEMNK — minimum lease payments 105,772 126,204
-HEHEE - contingent rentals 7,629 7,892
EWIREMEHES MR Rentals receivable from investment
E#M%189,0007T properties less direct outgoings of
(ZZ—+ % :206,0007T) $189,000 (2017: $206,000) 4,307) (4,870)
FEBA (BF150)) Cost of inventories* (note 15(h)) 68,787 60,798
¢ FERAHF19,883,000T (=& —+ ‘ Cost of inventories includes $19,883,000 (2017:

% :19,173,0007t) » BIEE I KA »
NERKEHEEZR  EEEHELC
LA LTS BIFI RS (b)) & R

AR o

note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.

$19,173,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and
operating lease charges, which amount is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in
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6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

PROFIT OR LOSS

RERBERMRZAERS (@) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss represents:

A —E—+tF
2018 2017
Fr Fr
$000 $'000
BB -FERFNEHR Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
REERE Provision for the year 103 71
BEFE GBERME) ~  (Oven/under-provision in respect
BETE of prior years ) 56
101 127
AEABLIR - BB RS Current tax — Outside Hong Kong
TEERE Provision for the year 325 1,210
EEFTSH Deferred tax
ERMEECEER Origination and reversal of temporary
BB HE200) . differences (note 20(b) ... 4,673 ... 3,241,
5,099 4,578

REZZB-NEZEBRNESHBEDRE
FRZEFHERFERN (Bt kBaEBE
BEREFHR=-_ZT—t —NFERHEF
ErzREABRBEZE2ER75%  SEER
EPBRA30,0008T)(ZE—+F H=-F
— R/ —tLtERBREFEZERLRAS
IHEH20,0008 7T RRFTE-Z—tF
BENCSHERZAN) RI65%(=ZF—+
F116.5%)5TH o FEARKEFE ([
B RSB LAR BB IZEESR
EHREERBERACRITBENE -

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2018 is
calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, taking into account a
reduction granted by the Hong Kong SAR Government of
75% of the tax payable for the year of assessment
2017/18 subject to a maximum reduction of $30,000 for
each business (2017: a maximum reduction of $20,000
was granted for the year of assessment 2016/17 and was
taken into account in calculating the provision for 2017).
Taxation for the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”)
and overseas subsidiaries are charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant tax

jurisdictions.
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REBBERMTRZAEH (&)

(@)

RERBERMRZMERS : ()

BE-_Z-N\F=ZBA=1+—-HLEEH
B APE - BERIFIIEZHE AR
ZERABREDRN A% (ZE—tF:
25%) ~17% (ZZ—1F 1 17%) R17%
(ZZ—tF 1 17%) °

BPIE BT HER32,0008 T (H8E
31,0005 7t) 84K 7 300,000:2F9 7T (16
E74291,0008 7T) WEBRB A ZNF
3%BI%MBEB LM MESSEL
REERE12%HH - BE-ZT—N\FR
“E—+F=A=1+—HLEFE  BMK
RETHAIEAERBRER  BRBEWA
9 % B 28 5600,00008 9 T (B ER
582,000 7T) » 8 H600,000)2 F9 7T (48
E 74582,0005% 7T) K FER B )& A B 12 E
TEREI12%MHH o

BRIFEBRABSE  BRAEEANAEE
RPBZHECXE—ZTZTLE+=A
ZS+-BZREEZEANFE ZDIRE
10% B RFMTFEND - HRAEBE A S
BERETREBEMAIZMBARE
BEREER  HGIEURENBKERZ
BMBERER% - AEEEZET RS
RO ZZERF  FIAERZERE R
MENcHRERIAELERBEES
9,231,000t (=& —+t F 10,899,000
TT) e

6.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents: (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the applicable
tax rates for subsidiaries domiciled in the PRC, Taiwan
and Singapore are 25% (2017: 25%), 17% (2017:
17%) and 17% (2017: 17%) respectively.

Macau complementary tax is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 3% to 9% on the taxable income
above MOP32,000 (equivalent to HK$31,000) but
below MOP300,000 (equivalent to HK$291,000), and
thereafter at a fixed rate of 12%. For the years ended
31 March 2018 and 2017, a special complementary
tax incentive was provided to the effect that the tax
free income threshold was MOP600,000 (equivalent to
HK$582,000) with profit above MOP600,000
(equivalent to HK$582,000) being taxed at a fixed rate
of 12%.

The group is subject to withholding tax at a rate of
10% (unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of
profits generated after 31 December 2007 from the
group’s foreign-invested enterprises in the PRC. As all
of the group’s foreign-invested enterprises are directly
and wholly owned by Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiaries, a reduced rate of 5% is applicable in the
calculation of this withholding tax. Deferred tax
liabilities of $9,231,000 (2017: $10,899,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained profits
since these earnings are not intended to be distributed

in the foreseeable future.
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6. ZEERBRFIIRZFAEBH (&) 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(b) BEXHESIHERN (BB REAB (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
R HZHER: profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates:
A —E—+tF
2018 2017
T Fr
$’000 $'000
BFRIRER (EE) Profit/(loss) before taxation 6,360 (47,900)

BEEBERBEAEEEES Notional tax on profit/(loss) before
MR (EEB)ME AR ZE  taxation, calculated at the rates
STEBRBAIEAR,(BE)  applicable to profits/(losses) in the tax

ZEEHE jurisdictions concerned 1,133 (7,732)
AR 2B E  Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,985 3,223
106 BAGHRBRAZHESEE  Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (5,626) (2,581)
—_— KREARBEB 2B BEEE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised,
NMBRAFEECH A net of utilisation during the year 5,382 11,612
BABETEELEEIZE Recognition of temporary difference not
BER recognised in prior years 2,227 -
BAFE (BBERE) (Over)/under-provision in
BETRE respect of prior years 2) 56

B BIIE S H Actual tax expense 5,099 4,578
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REBEFB(ATKERM)EBMERLE (FKE
EEFEERAE_SFEECESHE W

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the

+ Annual Report 2018 44 #

T Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:
.
*E%&
ENEF 3
Salaries, AR
E=ZHe allowances MisHA Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme st
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Tr T T Tr T
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
—B-N\F 2018
HITEE Executive directors
BREA Chan Yum Kit = 6,109 = 18 6,127
®RIGHE Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 4,438 - 18 4,456
REK& Chan Sze Chun - 799 - 20 819
BUFHTEZE Independent non-executive
directors
RE= Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 = = = 60
REH Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 - - - 60
N Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - _ _ 60
180 11,346 - 56 11,582
ZE-t% 2017
HiTEE Executive directors
N Chan Yum Kit - 6,381 - 18 6,399
BnE Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 4,575 - 18 4,593
BE& Chan Sze Chun - 798 - 18 816
BUFHTEZE Independent non-executive
directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
KEH Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 - - - 60
BEME Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60
180 11,754 - 54 11,988

e RURBEVEINEERDESREHZBE
T REEY 2 HEME$2,040,000T (==
—t £ :2,160,0007T) °

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include an
amount of $2,040,000 (2017: $2,160,000) which represents

the market rental value of own land and buildings provided

to directors.
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8. BEEM& AL 8. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
A (ZE—+F: Afu) G ALH B Of the five (2017: five) individuals with the highest
N(ZE—tF W ESZHMEE RHEE7 emoluments, two (2017: two) are directors whose
EHIE - HBR= (ZF—+F =) At emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the
ZEBENT : emoluments in respect of the other three (2017: three)

individuals are as follows:

—E-N\F —E—+F

2018 2017

T Tt

$7000 $'000

HeRHEHAMEE Salaries and other emoluments 5,377 4,794

(KRN Discretionary bonuses 1,077 83

BIRETEIMH R Retirement scheme contributions 54 54

108

. 6,508 4,931

ZE=U(ZZE—tF =) MERS AT 2 The emoluments of the three (2017: three) individuals with
EETHEER : the highest emoluments are within the following bands:
A
Number of individuals

—E2-N\F —E-+tF

2018 2017

1,000,0017C —1,500,0007T $1,000,001 — $1,500,000 = 2

1,500,0017t —2,000,0007T $1,500,001 - $2,000,000 1 -

2,000,001t —2,500,0007T $2,000,001 - $2,500,000 2 1
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HipzmEmkH 9. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Hit2EREEBO2RBLE Tax effects relating to each component of other
comprehensive income
—E2-N\% ZB-tE
2018 2017
BRBiAT BB % BRBLAT BB %
&8 HERX £ 8 HERX Ea
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax  Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount expense amount
T T Tr Tr T Tr
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BEEBEIHELR Exchange differences on
BHBERZERER translation of financial statements
of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong 11,781 - 11,781 (11,788) - (11,788)
BEERATHREE Surplus on revaluation of land and
NZERBH buildings held for own use 73,219 (12,028) 61,191 23,670 (3,659) 20,011
Hit2EWE Other comprehensive income 85,000  (12,028) 72,972 11,882 (3,659) 8,223
BREF(EHE) 10. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
(@ BREXRRR(&E)

(b)

BREXRERR(FE) DREAQXTDZ
i IR FE = IR R FE L % F2,007,0007T (=
T —+F : E5E52,000,0000T) RAFE
ERTEBRMNETFHE287,930,0008
(=ZZF—+t % :287,930,0008%) 5T & -

SREBERR(FHE)
HRBE-Z-NRZ-ZZE—-—tF=ZA
ST-RLFEXEAMELE BT
EERTEER  ARBE-Z-NFR=
E-—tF=ZRA=t-HLEFEZERH
BEAN (BR)ESREXRERF (B
1B)#EE -

(@) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the company of $2,007,000 (2017:
loss of $52,000,000) and the weighted average
number of 287,930,000 (2017: 287,930,000) ordinary

shares in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings/(loss) per share

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the same as basic
earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017 as there were no dilutive potential

ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31

March 2018 and 2017.
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11. W¥E - - BERSBURKREYXE 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES
(@) FREEHE (@) Reconciliation of carrying amount
UMY
£E KR
URAESIR HOZEE
sEBRZ RAE
THREEY Furniture,
Land and fixtures,
buildings computer
held  IX£E  andoffice RENE
for own use R#EH  equipment £ REME
carried at Plantand  and motor Leasehold N Investment s
fairvalue  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total properties Total
r T i T T T T
§'000 §'000 $000 §'000 $'000 §'000 §'000
RAGME: Cost or valuation:
RZE-~EMB-A At 1 April 2016 373,105 4478 23913 55,105 456,601 146,415 603,016
EX3% Exchange adjustments (3,067) (179 (220 (760) (4,226) - 40
e Additions - - 176 9,030 9,206 - 9,206
110 & . B B o
HE Disposals (7) (14,984) (14,991) (14,991)
BftRH Surplus on revaluation 23,670 - - - 23,670 - 03,670
W BHELH Less: Elimination of accumulated depreciation (10,416) - - - (10,416) - (10416)
LMERR Fair value adjustment 612 - - - 612 9,440 10,05
R-E-tE=A=1+-H At31 March 2017 383,904 4,299 23,862 48,391 460,456 155,855 616,311
fi&: Representing:
BE Cost - 4299 23,862 48,391 76,552 - 76,552
HE--8-t% Valuation - 2017 383,904 - - - 383,904 155,855 539,759
383,904 4299 23,862 48,391 460,456 155,855 616,311
RAGME: Cost or valuation:
WoE-tEMA-A AUT April 2017 383,904 4299 23,862 48391 460456 155855 616311
EigH Exchange adjustments 6,063 340 490 826 7,719 - 7,119
BE Additions 5 47 1,41 4921 6,209 = 6,209
HE Disposals - (487) (3,106) (14,373) (17,966) - (17,966)
BIBRELNERZRENE  Tranfer from land and buildings to investment
properties (13,179) - - - (13,179) 13,179 -
EftBe Surplus on revaluation 73,219 - = - 73,219 - 739
W BESH Less: Elimination of accumulated depreciation (10,763) - = - (10,763) - (10,763)
MER Fair value adjustment = - = - - 27,59%  27,5%
WoE-NEZf=t-8 At31 March 2018 439,244 4199 2,487 39765 505695 196628 702,323
fi%: Representing:
HA Cost = 4,199 22,487 39,765 06,451 - 66451
HE-—8-N\% Valuation - 2018 439,244 - - - 439,244 196,628 635,872

439,244 4,199 22,487 39,765 505,695 196,628 702,323
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1. ¥ BERRBUARRENE (&

(@ FREEHRK (F)

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (continued)

(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

BB
RE EKR
HRAESIR BAERE
KERRZ RAE
THREEN Furniture,
Land and fixtures,
buildings computer
held  I¥KE  and office HEN
for own use R#EH  equipment £ RENE
arriedat ~ Plantand  and motor Leasehold Nt Investment st
fair value  machinery vehicles  improvements  Sub-total  properties Total
T T fn T T T T
§'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
A AERAE: Accumulated depreciation and impairment;
RZE-RERB-A At 1 April 2016 - 3,577 18,917 43,732 66,226 - 66,226
Eige Exchange adjustments - (142) (173) (479) (794) - (794)
TEEHE Charge for the year 10,416 100 1793 6,676 18,985 - 18,98
AEEE Impairment losses - - - 2,807 2,807 -8
HEBEE Written back on disposals - - (5) (14,984) (14,989) - (14,989)
BEBHE Elimination on revaluation (10,416) - - - (10,416) - (10,416)
REB-LFSAST-A MMV T - Yoo o089 . L
W-E-+EME-A AT April 2017 . 353 20,532 37,772 61,839 - 61,839
Ej#E Exchange adjustments - 286 377 741 1,404 - 1404
RERFE Charge for the year 10,763 8 1,228 6,455 18,528 - 18528
HEEE Impairment losses = = - 3,240 3,240 - 3,240
HEBER Written back on disposals = (440) (3,014) (14,289) (17,743) - (17,783)
BEHE Elimination on revaluation (10,763) = = = (10,763) - (10,763)
REB-NFSAST-A  M3IMad208 . 343 8. B9 5605 . s 36505
REFE: Net book value:
WZE-NEZf=1-F At31 March 2018 439,244 736 3,364 5846 449190 196,628 645,818
RZE-tEZf=1-H At31 March 2017 383,904 764 3,330 10,619 398,617 155,855 554,472
RZZE-NF=ZA=Z+—-8 REHER At 31 March 2018, land and buildings with carrying

25,670,0007C (=& —+ 4 : 23,180,000
T ZTHREEYEHRBITERIERIK
(R HIFE21) ©

amounts of $25,670,000 (2017: $23,180,000) were pledged

against bank loans (see note 21).
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1. 9% BERRBUARREWE (F)

(b)

WEEBE

RIBE-N\FE BBEERBBENER
ETReEEBEMNHREEE  BEREEY
¥ BERZETELBERE Bt &
EEEMEBYE  BERRZEZTWE
ME MEREEZRABEEHRERSE
ZAWREREBEEL(ZE—LF ERn) o
B B5 383,240,000t (Z&E— £ F
2,827,000T) ER[EHER D HEAAIA
BR - AIRERENREZSEENRR
CEHSELENZHFRERRBER
13.5%(=ZF—tF 1 13.5%) {5 °

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

(b)

Impairment losses

In 2018, certain cash-generating units of the Hong
Kong operation and Outside Hong Kong operation
recorded losses which indicate the related property,
plant and equipment might have been impaired. As a
result, the directors reviewed the recoverable amount
of the relevant property, plant and equipment and the
carrying amount of such assets was written down to
their recoverable amount of $Nil (2017: $ Nil). An
impairment loss of $3,240,000 (2017: $2,827,000)
was recognised in “selling and distribution costs”. The
estimates of recoverable amount were based on value
in use of the cash-generating units to which these
assets belong at a discount rate of 13.5% (2017:
13.5%).
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1. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (&)

S 2

REFE
EZR
2VNREEMYERNBEHRER

KEMEEFENQAIRE  BER
BEMBRELRE R - [2 26
FEINERSR=BEAIAESER -
DRAEFESERDSBAEBERMET
RAEBENABEEEMEZE 2 EM

BE-RMEE: EEAE-RE
BErE8NORE BREER
HAEERHSUEREEREA
BEREABHRE

FoRMEE: ERAE-RBE
AENAAE IFAHEE—
RNTBEERBERAERATR
TEENERYE - THBEERE
BEDEEIDEHHERN
5

FEZRMHEE ERATATEEN
EZHBEHENAR

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement of properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
group’s properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used

in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities at the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured

using significant unobservable inputs
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1. Y BERSEURREVE (& 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
(0 MEZAREFTE(E) (c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i) RAEFRE) (i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

BR-B-N\F=ZA=t—-8H
ZAREFEDESR
Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2018 categorised into

4
|

11
o
N A
-+ |
| =

_H.T

P>
=
m 1D

Fair value at

31 March i BIR R

2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Tr Tr Tr Tr
$7000 $’000 $’000 $000
EEMAAETE Recurring fair value
measurement
REWE Investment properties:
B - Hong Kong 93,057 = = 93,057
—thE R — Mainland China 103,571 = = 103,571
BFEER2LH Land and buildings held
REEY for own use:
-&i8 - Hong Kong 367,302 - - 367,302
—hE R - Mainland China 71,942 = = 71,942
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(LA #57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Y% BERSEURREWE (&) 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
(0 WMEZAAREFTE(E) (c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) AREZR(E) (i) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
NoE—t& B-Z2-t¥=RA=1t-H
=A=+-H ZOREFEDES
TARME Fair value measurements as at
Fair value at 31 March 2017 categorised into
31 March E— FEIR B=ZR
2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
T Tr Fr T
$'000 $’000 $'000 $'000

BEMARLEFE  Recurring fair value measurement

REWE Investment properties:
-5 - Hong Kong 67,939 - - 67,939
—HE R - Mainland China 87,916 - - 87,916
BEERZLH Land and buildings
Ry held for own use:
-5 - Hong Kong 315,481 - - 315,481
- E R - Mainland China 68,423 - - 68,423

BE-Z-N\FZA=+—HLEFE %
—BREZRCEWERER - FRABE=
FHNBAREH (ZF—LF 8) - &
SERXAEREMARABRALIAESER
B BBt 2 EE -

FEERMERENERFFEER L
REEYR=_ZT-N\F=ZA=+—HE
EHHE - METFHBYEEMTEE
HEEMEEBARDEET - 2B
TREIZHEREBAEMEEEE  H
EHMNEESREREREENEBR
B -t AMERNE - AEBE 2RSSR
TREBAESFREREHRETH
ENREERRRAELERRMEMHME

1TE9Em ©

During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil). The group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in

which they occur.

All of the group’s investment properties and land and
buildings held for own use were revalued as at 31
March 2018. The valuations were carried out by an
independent firm of surveyors, Vigers Appraisal and
Consulting Limited, who have among their staff
members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued. The group’s most senior
executive management has discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at the end of

each reporting period on an annual basis.
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11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (continued)

Mainland China - Residential

of the buildings

MEZDIRETE (FH) (c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(i) BEE=ZRIAETEZEH (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
FIRE

fhER & BARE mEFH
Valuation Unobservahle #E Weighted
techniques inputs Range average
REBZRENE-IX WABRILE Ehfx 3.2% - 3.5% 3.3%
Investment properties in Hong Kong Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZE-tF: (ZE-tF:
- Industrial approach 3.1% - 3.4%) 3.2%)
(2017: 3.1% - 3.4%) (2017: 3.2%)
REEZRENE-IX ERLBE REENEEFL -30% - 1% 7%
Investment properties in Hong Kong Direct comparison BE/ (E) (ZB—+E&: (ZB—+5&:
— Industrial approach Premium/(discount) on TER) TER)
quality of the buildings (2017: N/A) (2017: N/A)
ReEREZRENE-TX LON-CS(#3 ERfL® 5.0%-6.5% 6.4%
Investment properties in Mainland Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (Z2-tF: (Z2—tE:
China - Industrial approach 4.0% - 6.5% 6.5%)
(2017: 4.0% - 6.5%) (2017: 6.5%)
RPERRENE -2 LON-EN(%3 EEN(4S 4.0% 4.0%
Investment properties in Mainland Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZE-t5&: (Z2-tF:
China - Residential approach 4.0% ) 4.0%)
(2017: 4.0%) (2017: 4.0%)
RERBFERCIBREBEN-TX ERLEE REENES 5% - 12% -1.7%
Land and buildings held for own use in Direct comparison EXZBE/ (78) (Z8—tE&: (Z2—+%&:
Hong Kong - Industrial approach  Premium/ (discount) on -32% - 31%) -1.6%)
quality of the buildings  (2017: -32% - 31%) (2017:-1.6%)
REBEFERZIHREEY-E%E ERLBE REENES -10% - 45% 9.4%
Land and buildings held for own use in Direct comparison 2 BB/ () (ZB-t5: (ZB-tF:
Hong Kong - Residential approach  Premium/ (discount) on -22% - 34%) 3.3%)
quality of the buildings ~ (2017: -22% - 34%) (2017: 3.3%)
ReEREEFERZ L ERLBE RRENEE 7% - 3% 0%
REEN-I% Direct comparison 2 BB/ (&) (ZE-tE: (ZE-tE:
Land and buildings held for own use in approach  Premium/ (discount) on -9% - -2%) -3.0%)
Mainland China - Industrial quality of the buildings ~ (2017: -9% - -2%) (2017: -3.0%)
RAEABEEERZ L1 BRI REENES -27% - -2% -5.7%
REEN-F=Z Direct comparison et 2172 (Z2-t&: (ZE-t&:
Land and buildings held for own use in approach Discount on quality -32% - -5%) -8.6%)

(2017: -32% - -5%) (2017: -8.6%)
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1. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (&)

()

MEZDIRETE (H)
(i) BEE=ZRIAAETEZEH

()
UREBRPEANMBFEERZL
WREEN 2 AARETISERE
B ELL B ERIE - HAM™
SEEEEEE -

BB BOR T8 ) 2 i B R4
T34 52 1 540 BT 0 985 5 0L B o
RENHERS HESAES -
BERDREHE LT -

REMEZQIARBELERBEBER
EECHEREEERVARBE
RCTMEE °

WEERERERANERCRE
BEEYHEAPTSHEHSER 15
ARUREERVEMFHAE-
AREFEETSHEHSEERLE
BiE HERERBBEBR -

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

(o)

Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(ii)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The fair value of land and buildings held for own
use located in Hong Kong and Mainland China is
determined on an open market value basis, by
making reference to the comparable sales

evidence in the relevant locality.

The premium or discount used in direct
comparison approach is specific to the building
compared to the recent sales. Higher premium for
higher quality buildings will result in a higher fair

value measurement.

The fair value of investment properties is
determined by capitalising the current rent
derived from the existing tenancies with the

provision for any revisionary income potential.

The capitalisation rate used in income
capitalisation approach has been adjusted for the
expected market rental growth, occupancy rate
and quality and location of the building. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to the
market rent at value and negatively correlated to

the capitalisation rate.
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1. Y& BERIEURBEYE (&) 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
(0 MEZQAREFE(H) (c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) BEE=ZRIALETEZEH () (i) Information about lLevel 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

FR ZEE=ZROAREFEHH The movements during the year in the balance of

ZEBWMT these Level 3 fair value measurements are as
follows:
—E-N\F —F-tF
2018 2017
T Tr
$000 $'000
RENME-BE Investment properties — Hong Kong:
RMA—H At 1 April 67,939 62,831
118 ERERFEERLY Transfer from land and buildings held for own use
- REZEN 7,678 -
AAERE Fair value adjustment 17,440 5,108
W=ZR=+—-H At 31 March 93,057 67,939
REME-FEAL : Investment properties — Mainland China:
RMA—H At 1 April 87,916 83,584
EREEFEERLY Transfer from land and buildings held for own use
REZEN 5,501 -
ARAERE Fair value adjustment 10,154 4,332
R=B=+-H At 31 March 103,571 87,916
BEERZLIHR Land and buildings held for own use - Hong Kong:
BEN-FE:
RMA—A At 1 April 315,481 305,068
BRERENF Transfer to investment properties (7,678) -
FRiE Depreciation charged for the year (8,875) (8,508)
ARERE Fair value adjustment = 612
ERRE Surplus on revaluation 68,374 18,309
R=ZB=+-8 At 31 March 367,302 315,481
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1. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (&)

()

MEZDIRETE (H)
(i) BEE=RIESEZEH (F)

11.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
(c) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(continued)

—2-N\F Bt

2018 2017

Fr T

$/000 $'000

BEEBRAZLHRESEY  Land and buildings held for own use
—HE A — Mainland China:

RMUA—H At 1 April 68,423 68,037
HEBREREYE Transfer to investment properties (5,501) -
fE 5 P Exchange adjustments 6,063 (3,067)
FRITE Depreciation charged for the year (1,888) (1,908)
B AR Surplus on revaluation 4,845 5,361
R=RA=+—H At 31 March 71,942 68,423

REMENDIABERAERGRES
RIREMEZHERS ETER
AR

B A73,219,000T (ZF—+
% 1 23,670,0007T) A E A2 E K&
It REEVEGHFEHFEIANE
RofbiiziFEE Az L RE
FEMREABBTINESIE R
Z-NFE=A=+—HzEAEH
#87,043,000t (=& — £ F:
90,760,0007T) °

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “valuation gains on
investment properties” on the face of the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Revaluation surplus of $73,219,000 (2017:
$23,670,000) are recognised in other
comprehensive income in “land and buildings
revaluation reserve”. Had the above land and
buildings held for own use been carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
amounts would have been $87,043,000 (2017:
$90,760,000) at 31 March 2018.
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11. VE BERZEURKREYE (& 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
(d YMEZREFEINOT: (d) The analysis of net book value of properties is as
follows:
—B-N\F —
2018 2017
Fr T
$’000 $000
NEE In Hong Kong
-REHEE - Long leases 200,500 179,210
—HHEEE - Medium-term leases 253,239 198,050
—EHEE — Short leases 6,620 6,160
BEIRIH Outside Hong Kong
-REHEE - Long leases 27,125 23,913
120 —-HPHEE - Medium-term leases 148,388 132,426
635,872 539,759
&k : Representing:
LA RESRSER A Land and buildings held for own use
2T REEY carried at fair value 439,244 383,904
REWE Investment properties 196,628 155,855

635,872 539,759
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11. NE - BERZEURKREYE (&) 11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
() RERKEHEHHECEE (e) Assets leased out under operating leases
FERBREHESFUANERENE All properties held under operating leases that would
ERZMERERREME - otherwise meet the definition of investment property

are classified as investment property.

AEEREEHEELREYE - LEHE The group leases out investment properties under
E-ROSHBB-—FE=F  AARW operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
KNENE=EMERRER - HENMRES period of one to three years, with an option to renew
BEEEERE  URRTEHES - FEL the lease after that date at which time all terms are
EHEYTEBEREEE - renegotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted

annually to reflect market rentals. None of the leases

includes contingent rentals.

RIAUMBRHNECEHELTAERERNER Total future minimum lease payments under
BEHEMRBEDOT non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as 121
follows:

—E-N\F —E—LF

2018 2017

FTr Fr

$’000 $000

—FR Within 1 year 4,092 2,432
—FHREIFR After 1 year but within 5 years 1,278 1,476

5,370 3,908
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12. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

* Annual Report 2018 44 #

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries

which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of

the group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless

otherwise stated.

BRERLA
Proportion of ownership interest

ERTRAR

B/

BRZGHE

& Particulars of KEE
k&Y issued and fully  BBESR ARE WELF
Place of paid-up  The group's B®E BE

NEER incorporation and share/registered effective  Held by the ~ Held by a FTEEK
Name of company operation capital interest  company  subsidiary Principal activity
Moiselle (BV) Limited ABERREE 2,0008 100% 100% - RARR
British Virgin Islands BREBIZET Investment holding

2,000 shares

of US$1 each
EEARAA 2 500,008 B 100% - 100% ZERERGRES
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion
apparel and accessories
BHBRHBERAT B EEERTE 100% - 100% NRRBRAERE
Boo Gie Garment Factory Limited Hong Kong 200,000 & 1 Sourcing of materials and
LER property holding

1,800,001 B B& 3

Deferred non-voting

200,000 shares

Ordinary

1,800,001 shares
AHREARAT 2 2B 13 100% - 100% REER
Boogie Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
BE &R BRAA i 4RR G 100% - 100% BERAREHES
Bright Star (HK) Limited Hong Kong 4 shares Trading of fashion
apparel and accessories
EEEARARAT o 2B A 100% - 100% REZR
Busy Win International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
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12. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRERLH
Proportion of ownership interest

BRTRAR

BA /R

BXZHE

AmE Particulars of KEE
REEHE issued and fully MR rRR WEARE
Place of paid-up  The group’s 2] 5B
S incorporation and share/registered effective  Held by the ~ Held by a FEEK
Name of company operation capital interest ~ company  subsidiary Principal activity
ERERAT B 1008 & 2 100% - 100% REER
Fortress Power Limited Hong Kong 100 shares Investment holding
HRERAERA A S 300,000% B 4 100% - 100% TERERAREH
Grand Bridge International Limited Hong Kong 300,000 shares Retail of fashion
apparel and accessories
YERARERAT & 1,000,0008 K% 100% - 100% REER
iMaroon International Company Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Investment holding
Limited

WERERRAF S 10,0008 & 3 100% - 100% ESSE)
Landwin Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares Property holding
R (BB BRAF &2 1,000,000 1 100% - 100% ZERHRBHREN
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Retail of fashion
apparel and accessories
FREARARAF B2 2B A3 100% - 100% REER
Moiselle International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
Moiselle Singapore Pte. Ltd. FIR 50000008 REE 100% - 100% TER R R
Singapore 13T Retail of fashion
500,000 shares of apparel and accessories

SGS$1 each
REERAT ABERREE IREEIXT 100% - 100% SERERAREN
Onexcel Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of Retail of fashion
Uss1 apparel and accessories
ARREBRAT R 500,000% B 100% - 100% ZERMRHRES
Pearl Jade Investments Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion

apparel and accessories
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12. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

* Annual Report 2018 44 #

BREERLA
Proportion of ownership interest

BERTRAR

RA/ R

ERzwf

AL Particulars of rEE
REEE issued and fully  BMHER RRR WEARE
Place of paid-up  The group's 5 5B

AAER incorporation and share/registered  effective  Held by the  Held by a FEEXK
Name of company operation capital interest ~ company  subsidiary Principal activity
REARERAT S 500,000% B 4 100% - 100% TERMRHRES
Perfect National International Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion
Limited apparel and accessories
RK Moiselle Fashions Limited 5 14298 R 70% - 70% MG R REH
Hong Kong 1,429 shares Wholesale of fashion
apparel and accessories
EEREARAT £ 1,0008% B 12 100% - 100% NEEE
Shirley Investments Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares Property holding
EEREERAT 3 ARBA 100% - 100% REER
Sky Well Investment Limited Hong Kong 4 shares Investment holding
ERREARAA - & R25,000 100% - 100% TER i R R o
Treasure Light Fashion Limited Macau BT Retail of fashion
Registered capital apparel and accessories

MOP25,000
RARERRAT & 1,000,000 &% 100% - 100% TERMRHRENS
United Sino Investment Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Retail of fashion
apparel and accessories
RESNERDF R 500,000 & 3 100% - 100% REER
Viewgood Overseas Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Investment holding
R (R BRA T RE 2,100,0007C 100% - 100% REMRK
Ming Fung Garment Manufacturing The PRC $2,100,000 Manufacturing of

(Shenzhen) Company Limited*

garments
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12. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BFEERLH
Proportion of ownership interest

BRTRER

BRE/R

ERziHfE

T AR Particulars of

REEHE issued and fully ARE KEAF
Place of paid-up 2] b=2]

CES] incorporation and share/registered Held by the ~ Held by a FEEK
Name of company operation capital company  subsidiary Principal activity
RYEERERBBRD A e AR%500,0007T - 100% ZERMBHH
Shenzhen Baozhuo Fashion The PRC RMB500,000 IRER & FL&f
Wholesale Co., Ltd.* Retail and wholesale of
fashion apparel and
accessories
RMEXBERTERRAT: mE  AK%2,000,0007 - 100% TERB B
Shen Zhen Graceful Fashion Retail The PRC RMB2,000,000 k]
Limited Company* Retail and wholesale of
fashion apparel and
accessories
HEBRE (RY) BRAR: i 8,400,000 - 100% HEAK
Yubao Fashionable Dress (Shenzhen) The PRC $8,400,000 Manufacturing of

Co., Ltd.*

* REPEEMEMZNERERE -

registered under the laws of the PRC.

garments

These are wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises
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13. REERQEIZHER 13. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
—E-N\F —E-+F
2018 2017
F5 Fi
$7000 $'000
EWaZE RATRIE Amount due from a joint venture 6,997 7,574
EhEEFEE Share of net liabilities (6,997) (7,574)
AEBEREE QR ER (UERENRGSY Details of the group’s interest in the joint venture, which is
BHRERSER) FBEOT ¢ accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements, are as follows:
126 eI
— Proportion of
ownership interest
EBITR
X% EMEIR #RREAFE REH
REEAX KB Particulars of BB =N
EEAAER Form of Place of  issued and  The group’s BE TEEHR
Name of joint business incorporation paid up effective Held by a Principal
venture structure and operation capital interest subsidiary activity
Sequoia HK;, Limited AR AL =58 10088 B% 12 50% 50% ZERN
Incorporated Hong Kong 100 shares PR & 2 L &
Retail of
fashion
apparel and
accessories
AEBEMK—2HE2 5% D FSequoia HK, Sequoia HK, Limited, the only joint venture in which the
LimitedJ33f E A5 HIWETIBHRE © group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose

quoted market price is not available.
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13.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

Summary of financial information on the joint venture —

the group’s effective interest:

—E-N\F —E—tHF

2018 2017

Fr Fr

$000 $'000

ERBEE Non-current assets - 143

REEE Current assets 77 1,171

REBEE Current liabilities (7,074) (8,888)

BEREE Net liabilities (6,997) (7,574)

A Income 1,004 3,704

53 Expenses (427) (6,336)

FERRF,(BER) Profit/(loss) for the year 577 (2,632)
Ht&EE 14. OTHER ASSETS

HiEEREHEES AHREREMEZES B

AR|EHRET —FREE -

Other assets represent rental, utility and other deposits

which are expected to be recovered after one year from the

end of the reporting period.
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15. & 15. INVENTORIES
(@) REEHBERRRZEFEERRE: (@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

—B-N\F —E-tF

2018 2017

T Fr

$’000 $000

41 % Raw materials 2,930 2,855
EEM Work in progress 1,462 700
g Finished goods 44,812 50,080
49,204 53,635

(b) BRBMIAFAEBBRZFESEZD

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised

128 'k as an expense and included in profit or loss is as
- follows:
—E-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000
EERAE Carrying amount of inventories sold 73,082 56,320
(BERE) MErE (Reversal of write-down)/write-down
of inventories (4,295) 4,478
68,787 60,798

BEBz_FT-NF=A=+—-HLL#F
EzHEFENHREFEFRESE
TRERE 2 AT T R2RFERZM -

The reversal of write-down of inventories made during
the year ended 31 March 2018 arose due to an
increase in the estimated net realisable value of
certain off-season clothing as a result of change in

consumer preferences.
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16. FE UL AR 7R 2 E fth B WK

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—2-N\F —2-tF
2018 2017
Fx F
$’000 $'000
FE U BR X Trade debtors 13,143 8,592
o REREBE Less: allowance for doubtful debts (22) (27)
13,121 8,565

RE > ANRIEREMGERR Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables 30,975 21,778
44,096 30,343

FrERWIRAR K A YR RSN —F Al
Bl ER R/

(@) FBREQDHT
RIBEBR > RBZAHTEZERER
(Bt NEWERR R EMmERRA - LN
BRRRRE) 2REDHAOT :

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be

recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

(@) Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade debtors (which are included in trade
and other receivables and net of allowance for

doubtful debts), based on invoice date, is as follows:

—E-N\F —F-tF

2018 2017

FTr Fr

$’000 $'000

30 A Within 30 days 10,783 6,631
31HZ90H Between 31 to 90 days 1,685 1,554
91THZ180H Between 91 to 180 days 486 261
181THZ365H Between 181 to 365 days 167 119
13,121 8,565

FEUWBR X2 E H BB 5F30F90R 2
B o REBEEBR 2 E— S HBHEHNKH
24(a) °

Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the
date of billing. Further details on the group’s credit

policy are set out in note 24(a).
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16. FEURRFR I H fth UK ()

(b)

FE W R 2 BB

FE W BRR 2 BB RS 1R LA B AR RS 8% » A
REBERBWE BRI 2 TEMEEE
AUREBESEERER R AME (R
BEEET()() °

FRZRERBELBHEIINOT :

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the group
is satisfied that the recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off

against trade debtors directly (see note 1(i)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

during the year are as follows:

—2-N\F —E—LF

2018 2017

Tr T

$’000 $000

RMUA—H At 1 April 27 517
BEEERR Reversal of impairment losses (5) (490)
R=A=+—8 At 31 March 22 27

RZE-NF=ZA=+—8  EWERR
22,0007t (=& — £ :27,0007t) 2 1%
HEREREEACRHME - EREERR
BEzREBRRBEEHMERSE2ET - HE
B MREEENMG HRTEZERER
REATFRE - Bt KREBEHRRE
22,0007t (=& —tF :27,0007t) B
RIS o

At 31 March 2018, trade debtors of $22,000 (2017:
$27,000) were individually determined to be impaired.
The individually impaired receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that none of these receivables is
expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific
allowances for doubtful debts of $22,000 (2017:
$27,000) were recognised.
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16. FEUWRRFR R H fth UK ()

(c)

3 45 3R (B 2 FE WL AR R
I 42 18 Y = 2L (6] W2 48 2 IR 1L 2 B KRR K
ZERE DT ¢

16.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(c)

Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

is as follows:

—2-N\F —2-tF

2018 2017

Fr T

$000 $'000

3 % 8 H SR B Neither past due nor impaired 12,113 7,960
BT E30H Less than 30 days past due 220 35
BHI31H £90H 31 to 90 days past due 421 265
BE9THZ180H 91 to 180 days past due 200 186
BHI180H M L Over 180 days past due 167 119
______________________________________________________________________________________ 1,008 . ........00>

13,121 8,565

I 45 380 28 o R 1B 2 FE UK 208 I AT 1
WHEENRLBEZEREF -

EEMERRE 2 BB TIE - fLEAR
SEERFRZTHZBLEFER - H
REEEZYBEAREHRERDRK
BARUUZZWRE - RIBBELER  EE
EHRELEVENZEFeRELBER
8 - ARE N B Z S ERITHEMER

0
An °

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there

was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The group does not hold any collateral

over these balances.
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17. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

(@) Cash and bank deposits comprise:

—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
T T
$’000 $000
FHEE=BEAMR Deposits with banks within three
E'J 2 |ITER months to maturity when placed 16,000 36,821
TERERES Cash at bank and in hand 46,173 46,497
REEMBRRARZAER Cash and bank deposits in the
RITERARREE consolidated statement of financial
RERBRZHER position and cash and cash
REZEY equivalents in the consolidated
cash flow statement 62,173 83,318
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17. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued)
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MRBLADER, (B18) BEEERMAZER (b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation to cash
E2HE: used in operations:
—B-N\F —E-LF
2018 2017
o = FTr T
Note $’000 $°000
BREAER, (BE) Profit/(loss) before taxation 6,360 (47,900)
MTSIMELRAE Adjustments for:
REMEZHERE Valuation gains on investment
properties 11 (27,594) (9,440)
BFEAA2 T RESEY  Valuation gains on land and
ZfhEWR S buildings held for own use 11 - (612)
e Depreciation 5(c) 18,528 18,985
NE - BEREE Impairment losses on property,
ZREEE plant and equipment 5(c) 3,240 2,827
FEWERRZRERE Reversal of impairment losses
e on trade debtors 5(c) (5) (490)
BE - ANRERAEM Provision for impairment losses
Rz B EEERE on deposits, prepayment and
other receivables 5(c) = 1,285
A& KA Finance costs 5(a) 189 185
FE WA Interest income 4 (440) (1,087)
HEBE AR 2 WEFE  Net gain on disposal of
an associate 4 - (949)
HENE BMERSE Net (gain)/loss on disposal of
2 () /a3 property, plant and equipment 4 (487) 2
k&g ARz CaR),~  Share of (profit)/loss of a
518 joint venture 13 (577) 2,632
ExEH oL Effect of foreign exchange
rates changes (2,847) (3,133)
EEESEY: Changes in working capital:
EmEERD Decrease in other assets 8,436 788
FERD Decrease in inventories 7,564 2,794
FEWEE NTFRIERY ~  Decrease/(increase) in amount
(&) due from a joint venture 577 (2,632)
P i B o R LAt FE WK (Increase)/decrease in trade and
() E other receivables (12,671) 5,717
EMARRREMEMSK Increase/(decrease) in trade and
Zm,/ O other payables 212 (4,862)
BB ORL) B (Decrease)/increase in provisions (11,116) 865
REXBAZRE Cash used in operations (10,631) (35,025)
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17. BERBITER(E)

(c)

(d)

17. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

FTEHFRRERS (c) Major non-cash transaction
REE—+5 HEBEQARZHNRE In 2017, part of the consideration for the disposal of
1,150,000/ 8 TEHESRKERAEB L+ an associate of HK$1,150,000 was offset by expenses
Z S PIREH o paid by the directors on behalf of the group.
METHFELEEBEZHER: (d) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities:
TERHEAAEERETHFELEEEZ The table below details changes in the group’s
S5 BERRENRFRESED - BE liabilities from financing activities, including both cash
EBFELEERARERNAARKRAS and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from
RERAEEEZHEERERERANDE financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows
ARmETBcRERECEE - were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
group’s consolidated cash flow statement as cash
flows from financing activities.
[SFiigi
RITER
Secured
bank loans
T
$000
(Hfat21)
(Note 21)
R=-Z—tHMA—H At 1 April 2017 7,654
MEREREH Change from financing cash flows:
BERITEN Repayment of bank loans (581)
R-Z2-NE=R=+-H At 31 March 2018 7,073
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18. A RRA R H At B4R 18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
—2-N\F —
2018 2017
Fr Fr
$/000 $'000
FE A3 BR X Trade creditors 7,345 5,461
HitEARBERESER Other creditors and accrued charges 33,773 34,429
FE A 3R 42 IR IR R AR IH Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder 1,800 1,800
42,918 41,690

R BRMRREEMENREER —FR

ENEEATRERERR RERALEEE
B e

RBEHR  BEEAHTEZ2RLERER(E
AR R R A AR A) 28Rk 2 W0
T

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be

settled within one year.

The amount due to a related party is unsecured, interest

free and has no fixed repayment terms.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade creditors (which are included in trade and other

payables), based on the invoice date, is as follows:

—E-N\F —E-tF

2018 2017

Fr Fr

$’000 $'000

30BA Within 30 days 3,301 4,970
31HZ90H Between 31 to 90 days 625 315
#i890H Over 90 days 3,419 176

7,345 5,461

135



136

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i B4 B 4 M A R & W

* Annual Report 2018 44 #

S 5 e o B ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

19. EERAKEF

(a)

AEBEREEBCGRFIE QBT EURA)
HREB(EBRA) EBRHEEREAZ
EEHTREAMABESHE (RESS
2l - RESHEAHBUSITIAEE
ZREMFRNETE - RIFBESFE
EEXEREEREBEREEBBRAZ5%M
i EHR BESABEERALRA
30,0007 ° BB T E 2 HR DR
E °

TEZHELARAESHEAMLT BT ER
ZRERNRE - HEWB LR ERTE
BERBHE2E TEELRBZTE
B HRTIANESEHE -

REEBREXB 2 MBLARAZEEDE
BE2HEAGES T RASKRAHAEE 2R
EHRAETE - LB ARARSRAREM
HEt B2 BERAFERE Z6%HERK
FRHRERRGES TRIRA ZMEA
BRARERFA -

TRFT AN B BB A B iz & T 2 B2 FR 3 03
BFAS R RABEEHE (HROE
) MELARAREIZESHEFM=
ETE2LEAPRAIEEHK  REPR
DEERG ERREAZHEE AR
mRA - MBAREEENRE  WEER
AXNHARRR2BRALBE-—FSNE
fEARSE -

19. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a)

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to

the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a defined
contribution scheme organised by the local
government. These subsidiaries are required to make
contributions at certain prescribed rates of the relevant
PRC employees’ salaries to the scheme. Contributions

to the scheme vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in
Taiwan chose to participate in a defined contribution
scheme governed by the Labour Pension Act of
Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes at 6% of the total
salaries of the participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution
scheme, the contribution deposited into individual
pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance of

Taiwan.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in
the Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”)
organised by the government of Singapore. This
subsidiary and its employees are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
CPF. The contributions are charged to the profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the CPF. The subsidiary has no further obligations
for the actual pension payments or post-retirement

benefits beyond its contributions.
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20.

BRLEmESN  REELBEMERESRIKE

MRz HMEREE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

19. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)
Save as set out above, the group has no other material
obligations to make payments in respect of retirement

benefits of the employees.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are

charged to profit or loss when incurred.

AR TR ZAER 20. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) HZEUBMRRFARZABRBELIE ! (@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

financial position represents:

—E-N\F —E—+F
2018 2017
Fr Fr
$’000 $/000

REEEBAEHERE Provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax for the year 103 71
B = SR BB Provisional Profits Tax paid (89) (101)
14 (30)

BEFEFSHEBEELR Balance of Profits Tax provision
relating to prior years (31) (743)
(17) (773)
BBIRINIR Taxation outside Hong Kong 77 969
60 196

Rk : Representing:

2 E B IE Tax recoverable (29) (772)
FEASBi1E Tax payable 89 968

60 196
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20. BABBRREFRZFER (#) 20. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
by ERIAELFEREERAER: (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
RAFEEGEMBRARERZEL The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
8% (BE) /AE2ARBIRER recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
BEAT : position and the movements during the year are as
follows:
HESREE
ELHE
Depreciation AR hBERz  WEAR
in excess of FEEN  MERE  ARRE  ADOMEW
the related BfEME  Unrealised Write- Future ~ Undistributed
depreciation ~ Revaluation ~profits on downof ~ henefit of profit of ag
allowances ~ of properties inventories  inventories tax losses  subsidiaries Total
n T T T Tn T n
§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
138
RZE-~EMB-H At 1 April 2016 (5,813) 81,221 (2,956) (3,442) (1,794) - 67,216
ERRBME Charged to profit or loss 45 1,184 043 1,369 - - 3,241
ELailS Charged to reserves - 3,659 - - - - 3,659
WZE-tE=ZB=1+-0  At31 March 2017 (5,768) 86,004 (2,313) (2,073) (1,794) - 74,116
RZE-tEMB-H At 1 April 2017 (5,769) 86,064 (2,313) (2,073) (1,794) = 74,116
BRESGIA) /1R (Credited)/charged to profit or loss (403) 1,921 367 561 = 2,207 4,673
RERIR Charged to reserves = 12,028 - - - - 12,028

WZB-NEZB=+-8  At31 March 2018 6171) 100,013 (1,946) (1,512) (1,794) 2,227 90,817
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20. BEMBRRARFARZAEN (& 20. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
(b)) ERIAELFESHEEERERE: (&) (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)
—2-N\F —2-tF
2018 2017
Tr Fr
$'000 $'000
REEMBRRRER 2 Net deferred tax assets recognised
REFTEMEEFE in the consolidated statement of
financial position (3,437) (3,831)
REEMBRRRER 2 Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
EREFEHEEFEE in the consolidated statement of
financial position 94,254 77,947
90,817 74,116
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20. EAMBRRERFARZFER (&) 20. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(c)

RERELEFMESHEE :

RIBERHE1(p) 2 BTBE » AREAL

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note

ERTIHESEEZERIAELERESHE 1(p), the group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
E: respect of the following temporary differences:
—E-N\F —E—LF
2018 2017
Fr Fr
$’000 $000
BBER Tax losses 209,943 183,124
MEZRHEBNEEBER Depreciation in excess of the related
ME - -BERRZREZ depreciation allowances and
WEEE impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment 194 7,593
BESEHESNRE Provision for onerous operating
lease contracts 1,898 13,014
212,035 203,731

REANBEERTHELEEBEFERLZ
#HBEZ=FREAZNIE7,813,0007T (=
T —+F :6,703,0007T) * TEHELEIE
FEREZERZEERFEAZRE
68,543,000 (ZZ—t & : 56,196,000
T RIBEEERFERZERELZ TER
£ fl 2 5 1B3,830,0007C (ZF — £ F :
1,116,00070) ° RIER BB KRG - 6458
129,757,0007T (=& — £ £ : 119,109,000

7o) W FE R

expire under the current tax legislation.

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
$7,813,000 (2017: $6,703,000) which can be carried forward
up to three years from the year in which the loss was incurred,
an amount of $68,543,000 (2017: $56,196,000) which can be
carried forward up to five years from the year in which the loss
was incurred and an amount of $3,830,000 (2017:
$1,116,000) which can be carried forward up to ten years
from the year in which the loss was incurred. The remaining
balance of $129,757,000 (2017: $119,109,000) does not
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21. BEEHARITER

R-B—NE=A=+-R FEEEBET
BT OISR AR

21.

SECURED BANK LOANS
At 31 March 2018, all

repayable as follows:

+ Annual Report 2018 44 #

the secured bank loans were

—B-N\F —EB-tF
2018 2017
Tr Tr
$'000 $'000
—FREHBHEZEZEHERIM Portion of term loans due for
repayment within one year 581 581
—FRIBPEELZ Term loans due for repayment after one year
BEHERMZ) - (Note 1):
—FREWMER After 1 year but within 2 years 581 581
MEEZEBREFER After 2 years but within 5 years 1,744 1,744
LE% After 5 years 4,167 4,748
____________________________________________________________________________________________ 6492 7073
7,073 7,654

et BNREDREBEER B EABFETER
BHEIfEE - WESTAEMREREE

RRZEE -

R-ZE—NF=ZR=+—H0 AEBZRTE
IS R #21825,670,00000 (Z & — £ 5 :
23,180,0007t) 2 T W R EBFEY 2 EEHRRLE R
AATRBEZIERERIKIF

BEARTERANSETRALTAMEAT
ZHBMRR L REE 2 2 - KR EERBE
it AAREREEFEFRITEN - &K
BEREEAGBTREREZER - BRE
BrBEsRBEE2E-—SHBRARKE
24b) e RA=ZZE—NFE=ZB=+—H L\|ER
FREEARTER 2ZE (ZE—t5F  H#) -

Note 1: The amounts due are based on the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements
and ignore the effect of any repayment on

demand clause.

At 31 March 2018, the bank loans of the group were
secured by legal charges over land and buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of $25,670,000 (2017:
$23,180,000) and guaranteed by the company.

The secured bank loans are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain statement of financial position
ratios of the company’s subsidiaries. If the group were to
breach the covenants the secured bank loans would
become payable on demand. The group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note
24(b). As at 31 March 2018, none of the covenants relating
to the secured bank loans had been breached (2017: Nil).



142

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i B4 B 4 M A R & W

* Annual Report 2018 44 #

S 5 e o B ik

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #5R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22. BE 22. PROVISIONS

BREEEHESHRE Provision for onerous contracts
—E-N\F —E—+tF
2018 2017
Frx Ft
$’000 $'000
ROA—AH At 1 April 13,014 12,149
MR Additional provisions made 1,986 10,037
2B S Provision utilised (13,102) (9,172)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 1,898 13,014

FEERBEBEBREBEINER 2ETIER
ZEBHESHFELRE REZZEEN B
THBREEZ T IRERABBZRE/EHET
HERBK TEE KBRS - At - BIES
HBECRIEERDERA | hER -

The provision was made for onerous lease contracts for
certain stores of the Hong Kong operation and Outside
Hong Kong operation. Under these contracts, the
unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations have exceeded
the economic benefits expected to be derived from sales
generated by these stores. Consequently, a provision for
onerous contracts was recognised in “selling and

distribution costs”.
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23.

FEBEGAEZEMORFIRFRE
BReHRENGEERZEB R - AOFE
BEBORFIORFRE2EZBDFEH

RTXe

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below.

The company

e R iaE E4RH REEN ARRER

Share Share  Contributed Retained Total
capital premium surplus profits equity
i r r r T
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
RZB-AFMA—-AZ&H Balance at 1 April 2016 2,880 65,327 61,572 167,174 296,953
ZE-RE/-tE2 Changes in equity in 2016/17:
RERE:
ER2ENEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 6,229 6,229
EECHEZRE Dividend approved in respect
(HiEz23)i1) of the previous year (note 23(b)(i)) - - - (5,759) (5,759)
FEEBRERZRE Dividend declared in respect of
(HiE230)1)) the current year (note 23(b)(i)) - - - 2,879) 2,879)
R=ZZ-t%=A=+—H  Balance at 31 March 2017
&6 2,880 65,327 61,572 164,765 294,544
RZB-tEMA-B2&8 Balance at 1 April 2017 2,880 65,327 61,572 164,765 294,544
“E-tE/-N\E2 Changes in equity in 2017/18:
B#2H
EN2ENELE Total comprehensive income
for the year = - - 5,498 5,498
EEERAEZRE Dividend approved in respect of
(Hia230)/ii)) the previous year (note 23(b)(ii)) = = = (5,759) (5,759)
TEEEERZRE Dividend declared in respect of
(HEE2306)0)) the current year (note 23(b)(i)) - - - (2,879) (2,879)

R-B-NEZA=+-H
&R

Balance at 31 March 2018

2,880 65,327 61,572 161,625 291,404
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23. X RERKRE (&)

by BE
(1)

(i1)

AL A #Em KR AR FERE

. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b) Dividends

(i)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

company attributable to the year

—E-N\F —
2018 2017
FTr Fr
$’000 $000
EERMRIKAFHREER  Interim dividend declared and paid of
TERIML(ZE—1F: 1 cent per ordinary share (2017:
BREBRIMW) 1 cent per ordinary share) 2,879 2,879
RBEHRERZDIK Final dividend proposed after the end
REAREBREBRKRAML of the reporting period of 4
(ZE—tF: cents per ordinary share (2017:
BREBR2MW) 2 cents per ordinary share) 11,517 5,759
14,396 8,638

RESHREEBD IR ZARHBRE
YREREBRAERBEE -

AL Az KRR L — A
FEKRE  WRAFEEEERIK
1

(i)

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a

liability at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
company attributable to the previous financial

year, approved and paid during the year

—E-N\f¥ —E—+tF
2018 2017
Fr T
$000 $'000
BRLE—EMERFE Final dividend in respect of the
TRAFEERER previous financial year, approved
R RAREER and paid during the year, of 2
EER2A(ZE -5 cents per ordinary share (2017: 2

BRE®ER24L) cents per ordinary share) 5,759 5,759
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23. X RERKRE (&)

(c)

(d)

23.

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

IR 2 (c) Share capital
FEEREZITRA Authorised and issued share capital
—B-N\F —EF-tF
2018 2017
BB EE &5 BHEE &5
No. of No. of
shares Amount shares Amount
FB Fr T Fx
000 $’000 ‘000 $’000
EE Authorised:
BREEITZ Ordinary shares of $0.01
ZiER each 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
ERITRABE: Issued and fully paid:
REEHBRENREER At beginning of the year and
at end of the year 287,930 2,880 287,930 2,880

EERBEAGRERTBERZRE
BEARRERLBRITE-RRRE -
MEEBRUAAAZNBEEZAR
i 3¢

H}

Bl

o

4

RELEREH

(i) BREE
RIEHEHBLAAZE BRHORER
APRFARATDZRE  HEEER
BoRKREBE®E AQATENE
BEOREISBEEREERBRES
EECE® ROBESATUET
BRAFBRD 2 FRIEHDIK

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard

to the company’s residual assets.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium
In accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account is
distributable to shareholders of the company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. The share premium may also be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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23. X RERKRE (&)
RELERBEH (H)

(d)

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

HftfA
HitFBER-ZZT_F - A
TtTHRAENZASEEAMKE
ZHBRARZRAEERMLESR
REZAQRRASHTROZEEZ
E8

ELFE

EiXREESHTEERRESBES
EBRMBRREECEREH - =&
REEME)MEE T RRER

EEBGLE
BENBBELXEBAZPEE
#ZAQARZHEMBARERY
MEEZERGBAE DAAREER
SRBIRBEREINES BHER
IREESELVEABFERBE
WA (RPBERFTTE) 210%E #
ARBEESR BEEZESZHER
EZHFMERZ50%A 1k o th1E
EeTAFEREEERERAAR
EXAR -FENBARZESEE
AHEAEERE EFERITHT
REAREANES HN-ZZTHF+
B+t HBIEHAE BH-FZF
RE—BA—HE FHEERTBER
AEEF -BHIELBIEBR
BRESFHERE-

23. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of
the shares of the company issued in exchange
thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which

became effective on 25 January 2002.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance

with the accounting policies set out in note 1(s).

Statutory reserve funds

According to the PRC laws applicable to
wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises, the
PRC subsidiaries of the company are required to
set up two statutory reserve funds, general reserve
fund and staff general fund. General reserve fund
was set up by appropriating at least 10% of its
annual profit after taxation, as determined under
PRC regulations, until the balance of the fund
reaches 50% of its registered capital. This fund
can be used to make good losses or to convert
into paid-in capital. Transfer from retained
earnings to staff general fund was made at the
discretion of the board of directors of the PRC
subsidiaries. Starting from 1 January 2006, the
transfer is no longer a statutory obligation upon
the revision of the law on 27 October 2005 and
no transfer to staff general fund has been made

since.
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(d)

(e)
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HEEER BB (#E)
v) THREZYEGHEE
AEBMORIL T REEYE G
B WHREREMRFIEERZ L
REFZY RN ETHE (M
) REE o

(vi) BHEE
ERRSRERARBR -_ZT_F—
B-TEHANZEBEEAMKE
ZHBLARAER cAHEEFEHEA
RABRMMESREZESRITRG
ZHEZEZH BEHRSGIAEH
RS ERR -

A it 5 Tk 1% 48
RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—H  ADKFAR
NEERR R 2 #E#%5288,524,000
L (ZZF—t% :291,664,0007T) ° RIR
HHRE  EBERIRABREGRE

BRML(ZZE—tF  SREBR2MW) -
EHABE11,517,0000 (ZFE— L& :
5,759,0007t) (FFEE23(b)) ° LLIEBR BT

ERIAABMEHRz2EE -

BExER
FEBEREACEEREDRELRE
BREEBERBFELCEREELE M
FRERBKERBEZERKRREE
EBRUNEERFTESHE  BELSRERA
ERHRRAEMEDEF RS -

23. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

(e)

M

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v) Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The land and buildings revaluation reserve has
been set up and will be dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for the
revaluation of land and buildings held for own

use (note 1(g)).

(vi) Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the then combined net asset value of the
subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of
the shares of the company issued in exchange
thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which
became effective on 25 January 2002. The
application of contributed surplus is the same as

the share premium.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
company was $288,524,000 (2017: $291,664,000).
After the end of the reporting period the directors
proposed a final dividend of 4 cents per ordinary
share (2017: 2 cents per ordinary share), amounting to
$11,517,000 (2017: $5,759,000) (note 23(b)). This
dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the

end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.
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BEXREE(E)

AEEERYERENMNEREELRE
B UESHEE  SRREBEBEEE
RIEFROEAAR N 2 B EUG T4 - B H
EEBRENSCHERRBELRAE -

RZZ-N\FHE  FAEERE-FT-—t
FoE  ERERFEBUERTHR
ERKTEARBESAE - BEFIHE
BEKF  REETHBRNY TFRR 2R
EEE  BOHKRN  BEHEERER
HEBEMBMBREKF -

BREBHRAME2ITRBERRRRITE
RANRETERRTAHNBEL R 2HH
R BB 2 255 - AR REKE
NERBAZIINERZESRRERS

23. CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

M

Capital management (continued)

The group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

During 2018, the group’s strategy in monitoring its
capital structure, which was unchanged from 2017,
was to maintain a sufficient cash level to meet its
liquidity requirements. In order to maintain or adjust
the cash level, the group may adjust the amount of
dividends payable to shareholders, issue new shares,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to increase the

cash level.

Except for the secured bank loans which require the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain statement of
financial position ratios of the company’s subsidiaries
as disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements,
neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are

subject to externally imposed capital requirements.



24.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited ¥ i B4 B 48 M A R 2 5]

+ Annual Report 2018 44 #

S 25t A B i

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA #57R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TREAREEREMIAZAARE

FE -RBES - FARREWEARDEREH
ERCERERBRITESL - AEEFRAEZ
ZERBREAEEERZSABTRAZME
EEREMNFEMLRT I -

(@)

FERAR
AEBZFEERBRTIERERERERRE
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REHETSEZEEZEFETEE
o WEFEEPREFBAREER
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RENEFEENRFERRSERER
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IRE H30Z90H AEE - RABEI K
BERECEBABEBENEREESR
BEHIUETE—SEE AEKEEHHE
%5 E B IR BR AN R H Ath FE UK 2 AT U =
S8 UREARTIRESEFHREAZ
WEEE -

RITER-REFETRRENYFH
BT -Flt EREATAPRESFH
THRETHREZEE-

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks

arises in the normal course of the group’s business. The

group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the group to

manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are

monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. These receivables are due
within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Debtors
with long overdue balances are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. The group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and other receivable
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts.

Bank deposits are placed normally with counterparties
that have sound credit ratings. Therefore, management
does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to

meet its obligations.
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ETRMEEZIRABEIR AEELER
HEMAEREERARHEERROTHE
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, 9% (2017: 9%) and
40% (2017: 34%) of the total trade and other
receivables was due from the group’s largest debtor

and the five largest debtors respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
group has not provided any financial guarantee which

would expose the group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade and

other receivables are set out in note 16.

Liquidity risk

The group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash outflows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the end of the

reporting period).
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (continued)

As the directors do not expect the banks would
exercise the rights to demand repayment, the bank
loans subject to repayment on demand clause are
expected to be repayable based on the specific
repayment terms. Hence, for these bank loans, the
following tables show the contractual undiscounted
cash outflows according to the specific repayment
terms and, separately, the impact to the timing of the
cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke their

unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate

effect.
“E-N\%
2018
THRFRR LT
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—F% mER
EmER  BLER
HEEA More than ~ More than
WE®  —EA Tyearbut 2yearshut  EE# REE
On  Within  lessthan  lessthan More than &3 Carrying
demand Tyear  2years  5years 5 years Total  amount
i T r T T T T
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 000
SRERBERIER Bank loans subject to repayment
ZETER on demand clauses:
RATEFHER scheduled repayment = 780 763 6,233 - 7,776 7,073
ENERRAMERR Trade and other payables - 42,918 - - - 42918 42,918
- 43,698 763 6,233 - 50,694 49,991
REERAZER Adjustments to disclose cash flows
EEEENARTER on bank loans based on lender's
ReRevhERE right to demand repayment 7,073 (780) (763)  (6,233) - (703) -
7,073 42,918 - - - 49,991 49,991
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24, cRIEMEEBRSBMIAEZNAE (&) 24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF

(b)y REBEZEEE (E)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

B-tE
2017
ATRRFRRER
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
-E% WER
BmER  BRER
BEBN More than ~ More than
E3f —ER  Tyearbut 2yearshut — EE# RAE
On Within -~ lessthan  less than ~ More than @ Canrying
demand Tyear 2 years 5 years 5 years Total  amount
T T Tr T Tr T T
'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000
TREXEERIER Bank loans subject to repayment
ZETER on demand clauses:
BEEESHEN scheduled repayment . 758 744 2149 4766 8417 7654
RARRREMENK Trade and other payables - 41,69 - - - 41690 41,690
- 448 442049 4766 50,007 49,344
REETAZER Adjustments to disclose cash flows
DEEREANLETES  on bank loans based on lender's
BeREvRERE right to demand repayment 7,654 (758) (744)  (2,149)  (4766) (763) -
7654 41,690 - . S 49344 4934
(0 F=EE (c) Interest rate risk
AEBZANEEBRIEREFTESRE The group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its

f&e

variable rate financial liabilities.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i) FIEZE (i) Interest rate profile
TRAXEANBSHRTEER The following table details the interest rate profile
EERERABBEZFEER of the group’s interest-bearing financial assets

and financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period:
—B-N\E —E-tF
2018 2017
BBRA= BRA=
Effective Fr Fffective i
interest rate $'000 interest rate $'000
BEEFZSBERE ©  Fixed rate financial assets:
—RITHEX — Deposits with banks 1.1% 16,000 1.29% 36,821
TEIEERER Variable rate financial
liabilities
- BEFRITER - Secured bank loans 2.56% (7,073) 2.39% (7,654)

(i) BEEZH
RZZ-NE=ZA=+—8 " &5t
FRBEERD EM0EEL ™
Hthfie W EEAEERE > BIX
E B 2R EEF K AR B i R A5 1
n, EA 15,000 (ZBE— L4 :
BRBEREBERDENRREEF
#hn, /4 13,0007T) ©

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2018, it is estimated that a general
decrease/increase of 20 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the group’s
profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately $15,000 (2017: decreased/
increased of loss after tax and increased/
decreased retained profits $13,000).
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B EASERZAEERSRA
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#BEF, (BB (RREBEF) ER
FE -HRNAEBEALESERIE
BRAUQDABEFEZEAERT
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(d) E¥ER
FEESR.ERERIEZERBARE
EEREAEE BARKEZBENRM
EEUNMNE (ARZRX ST E LI EEE
W2IEEER) BEM 2 BWIR - BN
HERREER - SIBMIRRARZERE
ERERT B ARBREBR-

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
annualised impact on the group’s profit/(loss)
after tax (and retained profits) that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to floating rate instruments
which expose the group to cash flow interest rate
risk at that date. The analysis does not take into
account exposure to fair value interest rate risk
arising from fixed rate instruments as the group
does not hold any fixed rate instruments which
are measured at fair value in the financial
statements. The analysis is performed on the

same basis as 2017.

(d) Currency risk

The

group is exposed to currency risk primarily

through sales, purchases, expenses and recharges

amongst group entities which give rise to receivables,

payables and cash balances that are denominated in a

foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the

functional currency of the operations to which the

transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this

risk

are primarily United States dollars, Euros,

Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong
Kong dollars, all sales and purchases are denominated
in either Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi or United
States dollars, except for certain purchases from
Europe. Given that Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the
United States dollar, management does not expect that
there will be any significant currency risk associated
with such United States dollars denominated
transactions. For transactions denominated in Euros,
since the volume of such transactions is not
significant, management considers the exposure to

currency risk to be low.

For group entities whose functional currency is
Renminbi, except for certain borrowings from group
entities and transactions amongst group entities that
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, most of other
transactions are denominated in Renminbi. For
borrowings and transactions amongst group entities
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the management

considers that the exposure to currency risk is low.

The group’s exposure to currency risk and its policies

for managing such risk were unchanged from 2017.
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d E¥RK(E) (d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) FrAREZEERERE (i) Exposure to currency risk
TRUANEBN RS LRI I LAAE The following table details the group’s significant
HERYREERTENCHEIAEE exposure at the end of the reporting period to
FEBEREZ 2ERIERBFH currency risk arising from recognised assets or
AN TRTEEEERNEY liabilities denominated in a currency other than
MEARMFERER (RERERSE the functional currency of the entity to which
BEHBEARNFREN—ED) M they relate. The exposure arising from the
EENRER - TRNESEDRBSE borrowings from group entities that in substance
MRCERHRBRSBEEZI 2 form part of the net investment in subsidiaries is
B-EEREBEMNIERAR 28 excluded. For presentation purposes, the amounts
BREAAEENZNERMEL of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars,
MERSTEEFEER - translated using the spot rates ruling at the end of

the reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of financial statements of
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the group’s
presentation currency are excluded.
FEgzNEER (LER5IR)
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
= Nt —FtF
2018 2017
Bx AT N B AR N
Hong Kong Hong Kong
Euros dollars  Renminbi Euros dollars  Renminbi
T Tr Tn Tn Tr Tr
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $'000 §'000
EUSRFREMENF  Trade and other receivables = 86,332 = - 85,972 -
ReRALEEN Cash and cash equivalents = 45 = - 41 _
FHRAREMENT  Trade and other payables (4,359) (60,660) (44,991) (4313) (51,159) (20,320)
BRABEREE Net exposure arising from
fiEEzEREFE recognised assets and liabilities (4,359) 25,717 (44,991) (4,313) 34,854 (20,320)
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24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d E¥RRE) (d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) BEEDH (i) Sensitivity analysis
TRETRAEENBEHREAE The following table indicates the instantaneous
REBZIIEEZNE BEEBH A change in the group’s profit/(loss) after tax and
SEEzBRBBERN, (BE) RRE retained profits that would arise if foreign
ERZEEZE  CRREMLER exchange rates to which the group entities have
BHEFTEZ BRUME ERR significant exposure at the end of the reporting
BARETZENBEEZR KB period had changed at that date, assuming all
TERLAMER  EERZBMY other risk variables remained constant. In this
&o respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate

between the Hong Kong dollar and the United
States dollar would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the United
States dollar against other currencies.
“B-N\E “E-tF
2018 2017

t#h/ BRE&EER REEN #/ BEEEE REEA

(T#%) "/ "/ (TH&) gm/ A/

Increase/ (&) (M) Increase/ () (%10)

(decrease) Decrease/ Decrease/ (decrease) Increase/ Decrease/

in foreign (increase) (increase) in foreign (decrease) (increase)

exchange in profit in retained exchange inloss in retained

rates after tax profits rates after tax profits

fr T Tr Tr

$/000 $/000 §'000 §'000

Bx Euros 10% 43 4 10% 360 360
(10)% (423) (423) (10)% (360) (360)

B Hong Kong dollars 5% (731) (731) 5% (1,11 (1,11
(5)% 731 731 (5% 1111 1,m

ARE Renminbi 5% 2,052 2,052 5% 848 848
5% (2,052) (2,052) (5)% (848) (848)
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ERFEVN Z2AOMEREAEER
BEEMZIMmSAERNEESR
FHENESRTRBERRZERR
MBBTZREHTE -

BRESNCHBRIINEER 22T
CHAREFFEXAKERBFAELR
5 AR 8 A 5 B H e M EE L B 2
TRTHE BEEEBULEES
FELZHEEBFELNESR
YR - kDM T EESEBE
SIMBLR M BRERBEHAE
E2FEHMELE 2E8 - %R
DN =B - F 2R/ —EEE
T e

(e) DMARE
FESMIAYREAR-_Z-N\EER
—E—tHF=ZA=+—HZAAREBETE
BERERZHEIE-

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ profit or loss measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the end of

the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by
the group which expose the group to currency
risk at the end of the reporting period, including
inter-company payables and receivables within
the group which are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the lender
or the borrower. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation
of the financial statements of subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong into the group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2017.

(e) Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not

materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2018 and 2017.
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RZZE-NE=ZA=+—-BAERGHK
BREHBBZERABITERRENT :

. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2018
not provided for in the financial statements were as

follows:

—E2-N\F =

2018 2017

T F

$’000 $’000

EHES) Contracted for 42 _

RZB-NFZA=+—8  RETTH
REEHEXHRARN 2REHEHENRK
MEBWT

(b) At 31 March 2018, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

payable as follows:

—E-N\F —E-iF

2018 2017

Fr T

$'000 $'000

—F R Within 1 year 82,120 93,009
—FREILFR After 1 year but within 5 years 55,124 61,011
137,244 154,020

FEEREEHEHERAETYE - Z5H
HN—ROSRP—Z=F > AATRLWE
ENERMARREN - HENRBEER
REFHAE  URRHSEE -

BREMRE  REBRENRI  ANEBA
RETHEDERE -—TWREBFOLE
REESNREZEE -

The group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. These leases typically run for an
initial period of one to three years, with an option to
renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually adjusted annually to

reflect market rentals.

In addition to the minimum lease payments disclosed
above, the group has commitments to make rental
payments at a percentage of revenue for certain leased

properties.
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XERE

R-Z2-AF+A FAEEREBE-RWELQ
A(EEBMBAR) EERA  HER—EH
HREBRBETBEINTRES S AR EM 2
BARSRAEBELRERLER - EXELE
BEZEMSHRERCKRETBWB LR - 1
RFRERRAERBEZSUBRRRTIBEHER
RiE BEBMBEAREBEEBRE L RARS
EMERE - AEBCEREIIAEMABERE
RETE ESSEEOAKE RO
RER -AUR=ZZ-—NF=ZA=+—HILE
REBRRRES -

EXRBALRE 27.

RS BREREML T FARE 2 XS RERR
S ARBET L THERBBALTZRS

(@ EBHEBATNZIXS

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In October 2015, a subsidiary of the group in Hong Kong
(the “Hong Kong Subsidiary”) received a notice that it was
being sued by a fabric manufacturer under a writ of
summons in the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in respect of alleged infringement of
copyright. The generally indorsed writ of summons was
subsequently served on the Hong Kong Subsidiary but the
statement of claim has not yet been served up to the date of
issue of these financial statements and the Hong Kong
Subsidiary continues to deny any liability in respect of the
above claim. An external counsel has been engaged to
defend the said claim and the directors will continue to
seek advice from the group’s external counsel. No
provision has therefore been made in respect of this claim
as at 31 March 2018.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

(@) Transactions with related companies

—E-N\F —T-tF
2018 2017
Fr Tr
$'000 $'000
REMEZHTHA Rental income from investment
properties 494 575
ETIEE2HERX Rental expense for staff quarter 1,200 1,200
ZEEBRBRAEL Rental expense for a retail store
HEEX and office space 144 506
REBWRA Service fee income 764 929
PR 7% & B 52 Service fee expense 91 68
MEERABE Purchase of fashion apparels and
BF 75 AR & 5% EC 8 accessories from a joint venture 24 140
BEMm Purchase of cosmetic goods 2 79
i B B 1 B 8 Purchase of fashion accessories 16 -
& B 15 AR 8 &% Bl & Sales of fashion apparels and
FEEDQTH accessories to a joint venture 432 1,797
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27. EXBBALRE (&)

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@ BEEBARZRS (&) (@) Transactions with related companies (continued)
BEEBART L Z2ESWA - HeEX - Rental income, rental expense, service fee income,
BBEBWA - BEEAXURBEE IR service fee expense, purchase and sales with related
MEHERRZIRRETE - companies were at terms mutually agreed by the

parties concerned.

b)) FEEBAEMS (b) Key management personnel remuneration
TEEBAEMNE (BEWE/AEREX Remuneration for key management personnel,
RFRRDHITES2HB) WT ¢ including amounts paid to the company’s executive

directors as disclosed in note 7, is as follows:
—E-N\F —E—tF
2018 2017
Fr Fr
$000 $'000
161

EHEEREA Short-term employee benefits 11,346 11,754 -

HBEEERF Post-employment benefits 56 54

11,402 11,808
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AFEEZEHBRRE 28. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
—E-N\& —B—+tF
2018 2017
T T T T
$/000 $/000 $000 $000
ERBEE Non-current assets
RHE R Rz #Es Interest in subsidiaries 281,698 285,494
REEE Current assets
H A FEURR Other receivables 10,197 10,166
RERIBITER Cash and bank deposits 837 245
11,034 10,411
poEIA=N Current liabilities
H AR Other payables 1,328 1,361
REBEEFE Net current assets 9,706 9,050
EEFE NET ASSETS 291,404 294,544
EXR G CAPITAL AND RESERVES
[ Share capital 2,880 2,880
& Reserves 288,524 291,664
IR RSB TOTAL EQUITY 291,404 294,544
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WERKRERER

RZE-NEXA+TER  AEEREBZE
EMBARE-BE=FEALHE  UAE
E-EUREBZRENE REA
42,048,000t e R=ZE—N\F=ZA=+—H >
REYHEZREE#35,830,0007T °

EERBRERE

R-ZE—N\FE=ZB=+—H E=RBHELEHE
ZEES QAR R&EZERT HSuper Result
Consultants Limited » —XRREBHEBERAES

i 2 AT ER R -

29.

30.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the group in Hong Kong has
entered into an agreement with a third party purchaser for
the sale of an investment property in Hong Kong at a
consideration of $42,048,000 on 15 June 2018. As at 31
March 2018, the carrying value of the investment property
was $35,830,000.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES

At 31 March 2018, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the group to be
Super Result Consultants Limited, which is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce

financial statements available for public use.
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31. B2 =Z2—-N\E=BA=+—HLFECHE 31.

B RERZIERT ~ MBEURREZ
WRERE

EEZEUBHRRTEAY FESTALE
CEMZIREE - MIBEARZE - ZFEFT
RHBEARZRERBE_Z-NF=A
E+—BLEFEMRER  BNAREZSHH
BREM - ZEEREUTIREREEEHE 2
BT R IB R R 2 1

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 March 2018 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the

following which may be relevant to the group:

RT3 B

Rz EFBEZ
BEHHBEER
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BBMBREER) Fo%k [2H T A

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(BRUBBEER) F15% [RAEFEH 2K ]

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

—E-NF—-H—H
1 January 2018

—Z2-\%¥—-A—-H
1 January 2018

(BRBGFER) BI0RZBRIR [REYF KEYFEE ] —E2-N¥—-A—H
Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment property: Transfers of investment property 1 January 2018
(B3 (ERMBRERBEES) —28) B225% [NEXZRANNE] —E-N\F-A—H
HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 1 January 2018

(BEMBHRELER) Fi65: [HE
HKFRS 16, Leases

—E-hf¥—-A—H
1 January 2019

(BE (BERUBRERBEES) —28) B39 [FEHEZHTEEM ] —Z-h¥—-A—-H

HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments

1 January 2019
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BEZE—E-N\FE=A=+—BLFECHE
HENAREMZIET ~ HLEARREZ

WREXE (F)

REBEEFEZEMBE] - T XA RRER
DNRERBERAREE2HE - £S5hE K
SECBRBMENNTN D FETRE RS
BRERTE - ARLENE-DFBIHRY
T - BEH(EBUBHMELR) BRR(FR
BHBREZERD B ISRNARCELRTR B
HREAMEERNFENERAEEERN TS
ZER AL ERRMNZEEINERZET
TRV ARSEARAEEEBEEZ-F
—NFARZTHERNEAPHUBRETE
REFAE  TREREE-—SHE EREE
BN ZMBREPEREAA - AEBIR A&
SFHENRRNEE (BEARERE) -

(BRMBHRSERBORI2HT A

(BBMBHRELEN)BFEMABETHT
AEtRECREER  M(FRBEAERD S
3R EFHM TR - #RRiE | - (BBHHER
SRR ESRSIESERAEEHEE - B
EREEREFTERTSHREEZHRE -
Z—FHE (EBMBHRELER)FIRAAM
I AR B (BB SR ER) FE3957BRHE
ARRIEREMTIARTHEGEIEZR

=]

E °

(BB HEEN) FORMBNERER B
—NE— A - BRZEMA EEHMLEY -
AREBRARLEILRER  LHH
T \EDA - A2 RSESERETE
B -

31.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
(continued)

The group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the group has identified some aspects of
the new standards which may have impacts on the
consolidated financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed for HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 15, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption
of the standards may differ as the assessment completed to
date is based on the information currently available to the
group, and further impacts may be identified before the
standards are initially applied in the group’s interim
financial report for the six months ending 30 September
2018. The group may also change its accounting policy
elections, including the transition options, until the

standards are initially applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of
financial assets, including the measurement of impairment
for financial assets and hedge accounting. On the other
hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates without substantive changes
the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments and the classification

of financial liabilities.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018 on a retrospective basis. The group
plans to use the exemption from restating comparative
information and will recognise any transition adjustments

against the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2018.
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31 BE-ZE—-NF=A=+—HLFEEHE
ENAREMZIET - HILEARBEZ

T

RERE (F)

(BRUBBREE)ERILHT A (E)
HEATHAEENBHRR 2AHPLENT ¢

(@)

TERFE

(BB BRELERFIRBETHEE
SEEBEDESE (DERBERS Q)
BERAREFABRER (RAREFAE
#RD ROEBEAABFAEMLEZERK
BITE - DEDENESREEZESNRS
REHAREREESREECEBERN
MEE -

AEECHEERSRBERSTEZ
TREEERRM(E B BRSERDD
BORBREBEEL D ERTE -

(BB BRELERFIRBHETHEE
2o ERFTERER(EBEAER)E
3OMAHAE » (B IHBHREERD
FORBREREERRAIABRABRR
Z2eHEBEFERBREEMEHRE AR
B2 My DREMEEEEER (T
EENSBRERBR) - AKERFAE
EFAEEREAAEBHABEZERE
& MREFAETTHAKERMN(E
B BREER)FESFREREALE -

31. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

(continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

Expected impacts of the new requirements on the group’s

financial statements are as follows:

(a)

Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income. The classification is
determined based on the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets and the entity’s

business model for managing the financial assets.

The group has assessed that its financial assets
currently measured at amortised cost will continue
with this classification and measurement upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9.

The classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities under HKFRS 9 are largely
unchanged from HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9
requires the fair value change of a financial liability
designated at FVTPL that is attributable to changes of
that financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised in
other comprehensive income (without reclassification
to profit or loss). The group currently does not have
any financial liabilities designated at FVTPL and
therefore this new requirement will not have any

impact on the group on adoption of HKFRS 9.
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RERE (F)

(BRBBEBREE)ERILHTA|(E)

(b)

()

WA
(BRMBREER)FIHRZIREER
UTEREERFE IBEXIR(EBEHE
RIYEE3ORIEBT [EELEBIER - RIE
BHEEBEEER BEBSREFES
HHERFEERE - HR > BEARES
EURSEREBRBEARGTENEAE
HEEBBRIKATEHEERE - A58
BHERERCEEFBEEXNBERIRAM
BREEEE - REVSTME  MELRE
ER=—Z—-N\E=ZA=+—BHEHKIFRE
BRE  RZAZRFRAESBERE
(BREEN)FIETERAZRTRE
BEEEELETEEERES -

HrarEE
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31.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

(continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected
credit loss” model. Under the expected credit loss
model, it will no longer be necessary for a loss event
to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Instead, an entity is required to recognise and measure
expected credit losses as either 12-month expected
credit lossess or lifetime expected credit loss,
depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. The group expects that the application
of the expected credit loss model will result in earlier
recognition of credit losses. Based on a preliminary
assessment, if the group were to adopt the new
impairment requirements at 31 March 2018, the
accumulated impairment loss at that date would not
change significantly as compared with that recognised
under HKAS 39.

Hedge accounting

HKFRS 9 does not fundamentally change the
requirements relating to measuring and recognising
ineffectiveness under HKAS 39. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting. The group
did not have any hedge relationships as at 31 March
2018.
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31.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
(continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue from

construction contracts.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the group has
identified the following areas which are expected to be
affected:

(@) Timing of revenue recognition
The group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed
in note 1(r). Currently, revenue from sales of goods
and provision of services is generally recognised when
the risks and rewards of ownership have passed to the

customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good or
service in the contract. HKFRS 15 identified three
situations in which control of the promised goods or

service is regarded as being transferred over time:

(i)  When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s

performance, as the entity performs;

(i)  When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in progress)
that the customer controls as the asset is created

or enhanced;
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31.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

(continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

(iii) When the entity’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the entity and the
entity has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not
fall into any of these three situations, then under
HKFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue for the sale of
that good or service at a single point in time, being
when control has passed. Transfer of risks and rewards
of ownership is only one of the indicators that will be
considered in determining when the transfer of control

occurs.

The group has assessed that the new revenue standard
is not likely to have significant impact on how it
recognises revenue from sale of goods and rendering

of services.
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31.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
(continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b) Sales with a right of return
Currently when the customers are allowed to return
the products, the group estimates the level of returns
and makes an adjustment against revenue and cost of
sales. The group has assessed that the adoption of
HKFRS 15 will not materially affect how the group
recognises revenue and cost of sales when the

customers have a right of return.

However, the new requirement to recognise separately
a return asset for the products expected to be returned
will impact the presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the group currently
adjusts the carrying amounts of inventory for the
expected returns, instead of recognising a separate

asset.

The group expects the impact upon initial adoption of
HKFRS 15 will not be material.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(h), currently the group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently, depending
on the classification of the lease. The group enters into

some leases as the lessor and others as the lessee.
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31.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
(continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the
way that lessors account for their rights and obligations
under a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees
will no longer distinguish between finance leases and
operating leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients,
lessees will account for all leases in a similar way to
current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement
date of the lease the lessee will recognise and measure a
lease liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this asset
and liability, the lessee will recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability,
and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead of the
current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease
term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to
apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of
low-value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties which are currently classified
as operating leases. The application of the new accounting
model is expected to lead to an increase in both assets and
liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense
recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the period
of the lease. As disclosed in note 25(b), at 31 March 2018
the group’s future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases amount to $137,244,000
for properties, certain of which are payable either between
1 and 5 years after the reporting date. They may therefore
need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with
corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is
adopted. The group will need to perform a more detailed
analysis to determine the amounts of new assets and
liabilities arising from operating lease commitments on
adoption of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the
applicability of the practical expedient and adjusting for
any leases entered into or terminated between now and the
adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.
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31.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
(continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. The standard offers different transition
options and practical expedients, including the practical
expedient to grandfather the previous assessment of which
existing arrangements are, or contain, leases. If this
practical expedient is chosen, the group will apply the new
definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are
entered into on or after the date of initial application. If the
practical expedient is not chosen, the group will need to
reassess all of its decisions about which existing contracts
are, or contain, leases, using the new definition. Depending
on whether the group elects to adopt the standard
retrospectively or follow a modified retrospective method of
recognising a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at the date of initial application, the
group may or may not need to restate comparative
information for any changes in accounting resulting from

the reassessment.
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bl
Address

)

17

RIGRE1 455

E29HHE

it T D3R

Shop D on G/F

Bo Ming Court

14 Tin Hau Temple Road
North Point

Hong Kong

BB

Bl

@R RHA395%
EREE—H

1365 E

Workshop No. 6, 13th Floor
Kodak House 11

39 Healthy Street East
North Point

Hong Kong

58

BB

S 558 7 9%

BEHDO

2612817

Part of 26th Floor

Hing Wai Centre

No. 7 Tin Wan Praya Road
Aberdeen

Hong Kong

SRS <ETES
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Properties Held for Investment

REAR

Existing use

Shop

Office

mp
e

Warehouse

B

Lease term

EHAE

Short lease

RAE

Long lease

RHIRE

Medium-term lease
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Properties Held for Investment

B d RERR A

Address Existing use Lease term
d &HB

TR

RAE

M 1-875%

SRIEAE

BEAKBE BE FHIHE

(d) Factory Units A & B on 8th Floor,
Island Industrial Building,
Nos. 81-87 Tung Chau Street
Tai Kok Tsui
Kowloon
Hong Kong Warehouse Medium-term lease

(e) HELRY
BHE
174 m A R EER
- SR ES
4184102%
(e) Unit 4102 on 41st Floor,
Excellence Times Plaza
Yitian Road and Fuhua Road
Futian District
Shenzhen, the PRC Office Medium-term lease

D>
vt

FHEE

() FEIRITRZEABIEE
REEREF1.6BE3E3CR3IDE
(f) Units 3C and 3D on 3rd Floor,
Tianfa Building, F1.6
Tian’an Chegongmiao

=
o
it

hHIRE

Industrial Zone,
Shenzhen, the PRC Office Medium-term lease

(8 FEIRINTRZEABIXEBARLE

H2.8E55A5R5A6E ~ 61B6A5 * 6A6 ~ 6A7R

6ABE AR 7HE7A9 ~ 7A10 ~ 7AT1 » 7A12

JAT3R7AT4E BE hHIEE
(g) Flats 5A5 and 5A6 on 5th Floor,

Flats 6A5, 6A6, 6A7 and 6A8 on 6th Floor

and Flats 7A9, 7A10, 7A11, 7A12, 7A13 and

7A14 on 7th Floor, Jiutai Apartment H2.8,

Tian’an Chegongmiao

Industrial Zone,

Shenzhen, the PRC Quarter Medium-term lease
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Group Financial Summary

(LA ¥ 757R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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The following is a summary of the published results and assets

and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31

March 2018.
E RESULTS
HE=RA=1t-HLEE
Year ended 31 March
—E- N\ ZE—+tHF ZE-RE ZEZ-HF ZE-DOF
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Fr Fr T T T
$000 $'000 $'000 $000 $7000
I & Revenue 290,576 280,397 327,996 419,965 458,677
& (BR) %A (Loss)/profit from operations (21,622) (55,135) (62,308) 6,642 33,054
ME R A Finance costs (189) (185) (158) (1
FE{LBE N T 2 B8 Share of loss of an associate - - (419) (188) (219)
RN d Share of profit/(loss) of a joint
BA (EE) venture 577 (2,632) (4,087) 505 (1,019)
ITHREEYR Net valuation gains on land and
REWMEZ buildings and investment
HEWREFEE properties 27,594 10,052 15,558 9,682 1,244
BR&BLAIER, (BE) Profit/(loss) before taxation 6,360 (47,900) (51,414) 16,640 33,060
Fra® Income tax (5,099) (4,578) (5,101) (5,309) (5,137)
FREA,(BEB)  Profit/(loss) for the year 1,261 (52,478) (56,515) 11,331 27,923
THALERN: Attributable to:
RATERBRR Equity shareholders of
the company 2,007 (52,000) (56,515) 11,331 27,923
FERER Non-controlling interests (746) (478) - . -
FREA,(B8B)  Profit/(loss) for the year 1,261 (52,478) (56,515) 11,331 27,923
SREF(FB)  Earnings/(loss) per share
B=9iN Basic $0.01 $(0.18) $(0.20) $0.04 $0.10
e Diluted $0.01 $(0.18) $(0.20) $0.04 $0.10
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LEERE®E ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
=ZA=t-*H
As at 31 March

“E-N\F ZE—tHF ZE-RE ZE-HF ZE-DOF

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

S Fr T Fr T

$000 $'000 $/000 $000 $’000

ME- - BMERSZHE  Property, plant and equipment 645,818 554,472 536,790 522,076 466,123

HtEE Other assets 13,565 21,397 23,446 18,888 21,885

ELEFMSHEE Deferred tax assets 3,437 3,831 6,187 8,375 9,238

RBEERE Net current assets 103,524 104,742 165,768 249,605 295,339
EERARHEMEEE Total assets less current

liabilities 766,344 684,442 732,191 798,944 792,585

¥ RBEE Non-current liabilities (94,254) (77,947) (73,403) (69,867) (63,797)

672,090 606,495 658,788 729,077 728,788

S Share capital 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880

3] Reserves 669,834 603,493 655,908 726,197 725,908
FATERRRIEN Total equity attributable

BRRER to equity shareholder of

the company 672,714 606,373 658,788 729,077 728,788

FiERER Non-controlling interests (624) 122 - - -

HRRER TOTAL EQUITY 672,090 606,495 658,788 729,077 728,788
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